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GILBERT

Relax. We got this.™

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Governing Board
Alliance of Schools for Cooperative Insurance Programs
Cerritos, California

Report on the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Alliance of Schools for Cooperative Insurance
Programs (ASCIP) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2023, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise ASCIP’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of the other auditors, the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of ASCIP as of June 30, 2023, and the
changes in financial position and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

We did not audit the financial statements of Captive Insurance for Public Agencies Limited (CIPA), a
blended component unit, which represent 5.17 percent, 5.24 percent, and 1.98 percent, respectively, of the
assets, net position, and revenues of ASCIP as ol June 30, 2023, and the respective changes in financial
position, and cash flows thereof for the year then ended. Those statements were audited by other auditors
whose report has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for
CIPA, is based solely on the report of the other auditors.

Buasis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. The [inancial statements of CIPA were not
audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of
our report. We are required to be independent of ASCIP and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financiaf Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about ASCIP’s ability to continue as a
going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known
information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

2880 Gateway Oaks Drive, Suite 100, Sacramento, CA 95833
Phone 916.645.6464 » Fax916.929.6836 « GilbertCPA.com
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and
therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, mistepresentations, or the
override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that,

individvally or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on
the financial statements.

in performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government
Auditing Standards, we:

¢ Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

o [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or etror, and design and perform audit procedures responsive fo those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal coatrol relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of ASCIP’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant

accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

» Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about ASCIP’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable
period of time,

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the

planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related
matters that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Informuation

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis, reconciliation of claims liabilities by type of contract, claims development
information, schedule of ASCIP’s proportionate share of the net pension liability, and the schedule of
ASCIP’s confributions on pages 4-18 and 48-55 be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be
an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We and other auditors have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepled in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods
of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s

2
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responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our
audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence fo express an
opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that
collectively comprise ASCIP’s basic financial statements, The accompanying combining statement of net
position; combining statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position; and combining
statement of cash flows (combining financial statements) are presented for purposes of additional analysis
and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and
other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America by us and other auditors. In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of the other
auditors, the combining financial statements are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation fo the
basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other information
comprises the schedule of executives and administration and the “Memo only” column in the basic
financial statements but does not include the basic financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.
Our opinion on the basic financial statements does not cover the other information, and we do not express
an opinion or any form of assurance thercon.

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is fo read the other
information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the
basic financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other information
exists, we are required to describe it in our report.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 29,
2023, on our consideration of ASCIP’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of ASCIP’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering
ASCIP’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

G lberr €8 Brs

GILBERT CPAs
Sacramento, California

November 29, 2023
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The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) provides an overview of ASCIP’s
financial position and activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023. The MD&A should be read in
conjunction with the financial statements and accompanying notes which follow this section.

Overview of ASCIP

Alliance of Schools for Cooperative Insurance Programs (ASCIP) was formed in 1980 as a public agency
Joint Powers Authority (JPA) which provides a number of insurance coverages, including property &
liability, workers’ compensation, and health benefits, to public educational institutions, including school
districts and community colleges in the State of California.

In addition to providing insurance coverage, ASCIP also offers an extensive array of risk management
services, including safety and loss control, health and wellness, and claims and litigation management to
prevent and mitigate losses. These services are all inclusive in it’s member premium contributions and
ASCIP also offers a host of customized insurance products, including booster/auxiliary club, student
accident, and underground storage tank coverages, to meet its members’ needs.

In, 2005, ASCIP formally established Captive Insurance for Public Agencies Limited (CIPA} in the State
of Hawaii and began to offer an Owner Controlled Insurance Program (OCIP). Later it offered other
coverages, including Student Accident, Pupil Transportation, Workers® Compensation Loss Portfolio
Assumptions and Cortidor reinsurance through CIPA.

In 2006 ASCIP established a Health Benefits Program which now includes self-funded and fully-insured
medical, dental and vision plans fo its membership.

ASCIP’s Executive Commiittee consists of thirteen members who represent the membership categories of
Community College Districts, K-12 Districts, K-8 Districts, Charter Schools, and partner School District
JPAs. Committee members for each category are elected by the membership and serve staggered three-
year terms, In addition, there are up to thirteen alternates. The Execulive Committee appoints alternates
and may fill vacancies which occur prior {o expiration of a voting member’s term. The Executive
Committee is responsibie for providing overall leadership to the JPA, including the development of long-
range goals and policies to guide and direct the organization’s staff,

The Executive Committee is supported by the following member-led committees; Finance & Investment
Committee, Risk Control Committee, Personnel Committee, Claims & Coverage Committee and the Health

Benetits Committee. The day-to-day operations are administered by an in-house staff of approximately fifty
to fifty four professionals at any given time.
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Description of the Basic Financial Statements

ASCIP’s financial statements are prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in
the United States of America, including standards established by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board. The Statement of Net Position, the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Nel Position,
and the Statement of Cash Flows are included along with the Notes to Financial Statements to clarify
accounting policies and financial information. The Statement of Wet Position provides information on all
ASCIP’s assets and deferred outflows and liabilities and deferred inflows, with the difference reported as
net position. Increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial
position of ASCIP is improving ot deteriorating. The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in
Net Position provides information on total fevenues, total expenses and how ASCIP’s net position changed
during the most recent fiscal year. The Statement of Cash Flows is presented using the direct method to
reflect the operations of ASCIP based on the inflow and outflow of cash.

ASCIP’s financial activities are reported in three separate funds: Property & Liability Program, Workers’
Compensation Program, and Iealth Benefits Program. The Property & Liability Program consists of
revenues and expenditures relating to the seven core coverage programs (property, general liability, child
sexual assaulf, auto liability, auto physical damage, cyber, and crime) along with several ancillary programs.
The Workers’ Compensation Program consists of revenues and expenditures relating to it’s workers’
compensation coverage. The Health Benefits Program consists of revenues and expenditures relating to all
fully-insured and self-insured medical, dental, and vision plans, and other miscellaneous coverages such as
life, income protection, and long-term care insurance.

The assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, deferred inflows, revenues and expenses for the three funds are
reported on a full accrual basis. CIPA’s financial statements are included in ASCIP’s financial statements
as a component unit of ASCIP. CIPA’s financial statements reflect the revenues, expenditures, assets and
liabilities of the OCIP, Student Accident, Pupil Transportation, Workers’ Compensation Loss Pmtfoho
Assumption and Cortidor Reinsurance coverages.
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CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2023

ASSETS

Current assets

Noncurrent assets

Capital assets, net

Intangible Right-of-use lease asset

Total Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows of resources for pension & OPER

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities

Unpaid claims and c¢laims adjustment expense, net of current portion
Net pension and OPEB liability
Lease liahility - operating lease, net

Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows of resources for pension & OPEB

NET POSITION

[nvested in capital assets, net
Met position, restricted

Net position, unrestricted

Total Net Position

2023

2022

$ 170,687,556

$ 155432951

325,468,729 346,110,826
16,351,869 (5,582,715
6,875,663 6,983,003
519,383,817 524,110,395
2445419 1,355,136
126,478,367 103,134,102
210,611,818 194,837,609
3,606,545 1,276,819
7,002,627 7,002,627
347,789,357 306,251,157
42,609 772,534
16,224,905 15,563,991
12,041,819 14,348,498
145,730,546 188,529,351

$ 173,997,270

§ 218,441,840
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STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

2023 2022
Operating Revenue:
Member contributions $ 294,480,133 $ 287307997
Other income 109,929 145,571
Total Operating Revenue 294,590,062 287.453,568
Operating Expenses:
Provision for claims and claim adjustment expense 184,872,856 124,784,197
[ixcess/Reinsurance premiums 29,708,400 31,297,083
Health Benefits Insurance premiuns 76,838,285 T4 467,505
Contract services 12,594,470 12,169483
Loss control and risk management 3,875,299 3,534,437
General administrative expenses 13,970,114 9,983,609
Dividend expense 17,639,142 14445618
Total Operating Expenses 339498606 270,681,932
Nonoperating Revenue:
Interest and dividend income, net of fees 9,240,661 5133476
Net increase (decrease) in fair value of investments (8,776,687) (30,183,717)
Total Nonoperating Revenue 463,974 (25,050,241)
Change in Net Position (44,444,570) (8,278,605)
Total Net Position, Beginning of Year 218,441,840 226,720,445
Totat Net Position, End of Year $ 173,997,270 $ 218,441,840

ASCIP 2022-23 Operating Budget

Each year, ASCIP’s Executive Committee adopts a budget which serves as a blueprint for the Executive
Committee to achieve its objective of providing the highest quality products and services to its members.
It is designed as a fool for financial planning, control, and evaluation of pool performance in the coming
year. The budget incorporates various fiscal and economic assumptions and factors such as insurance
market trends, level of reinsurance coverage, claims trends and developments, investment performance and
administrative costs.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2023

Budget Actual $ Variance % Variance

Operating Revenues:
Premium contributions from members $ 296,913,000 § 294480,i33 §  (2432,867) -1%
Other income 127,000 109,929 (17,071) -13%
Total Operating Revenues 297,040,000 294,590,062 (2,449,938) -1%

Operating Expenses:
Claims expense 162,939,500 184,872,896 21,913,396 13%
Excess/reinsurance premiums 32,556,000 29,708,400 (2,847,600) -9%
Health benefits insurance premiums 77,305,000 76,838,285 {466,715) -1%
Contract services 12,056,500 12,594,470 537,970 4%
Loss control and risk management services 5,260,000 3,875,299 (1,384,701) ~26%
General and administrative 13,458,000 13,970,114 512,114 4%
Premium dividends - 17,639,142 17,639,142 n/c
Total Operating Expenses 303,595,000 339,498,606 35,903,606 12%
Operating income (loss) (6,555,000) (44,908,544) (38,353,544) 585%

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses):

Interest and dividend income, net of fees 6,755,000 9,240,661 2,485,003 37%%
Net unrealized gain (loss) on investments - (8,776,687) {8,776,687) n/c
Total Non-Operating Ineome 6,755,000 463,974 (6,291,020) ~93%
Increase (decrease) in net position 200,000 (44,444,570} (44,644,570) n/c
Net position, beginning of year 218441840 218,441,840 - 0%
Net position, end of year $218,0641,840 $173,997270 § (44,644,570) -20%
Capital Outlay $ 1,370,000 % 246,325 § (1,123,675) -82%

Commentary on Budget Variances

Actual premium contributions from members were $2.4 million or 1% lower than the budget mainly due to
lower premiums in the OCIP program resulting from substantially reducing enroliing new projects.

Interest income was 37% higher than the budget due to actual interest rate earned was higher than estimated
rate used for the budget as a result of extending the portfolio duration. Another factor was the high
investment activities of the Shori-Term portfolio taking advantage of higher yields during the fiscal year.

Actual claims expense was approximately $22 million or 13% more than budgeted primarily due to high
litigation activity causing higher claim payments and case reserves in the Property & Liability Program.

Excess/reinsurance premiums came in $2.8 million lower than the budget primarily due to [ower excess
premiums in the self-funded medical plan as a result of lower enrollment than anticipated.

Actual Health Benefits premium paid to carriers were slightly lower than the budget primarily due to lower
enrollment.

Contract services came in slightly higher than the budget mainly due to the increase in Workers'

Compensation Program claim's administrative cost due to additional dedicated claims adjusters for the five
new members in the program,

Premium dividends were not budgeted but the Board declared a rebate of $9.6 million in the Workers'
Compensation Program and $8 million in the Health Benefits Program.
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ANALYSIS OF OVERALL FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Assets

ASCIP’S total assets consist of mostly cash and investments with a small amount of receivables, prepaid
expenses, and capital assets. Total assets decreased by $4.7 million or 1.0% to $519.4 million at June 30,
2023. The decrease in cash mainly contributed to the decrease in total assets. All other types of assets such
as receivables, investments, prepaid and capital assets showed an increase from the prior year.

ASCIP invests those funds not immediately necessary for claim payments in long-term securities in order
to optimize the rate of return. The managed portfolio consists of fixed income securities purchased and
held in accordance with ASCIP's investment policy and the California Government Code. As of
June 30. 2023, ASCIP’s investments have a total fair market value of $393 million, an increase of $23.5
million from the prior fiscal year. This increase was driven by $9.2 million in interest earnings, $23.1
million in net purchases of investments, net of unrealized market value losses of $8.8 million.

The following graphs depict the total assets by program and type ol investment at June 30, 2023:

Total Assets by Pl'OgTﬂlll [otal Assels by [nvestment ]‘)’PO
Capitalassets, Cashid cash
SIS\ [ 5 Praperty & S23M,4° equivatents Receviables,
CIPA, 52500, 5% apern 230, 4% quivalents ecevial

Health Benefits , 7 Liability, 560, 1% SN 5%

e B 14 Q. .
SEORTs ekl Ny : Prepaid expenses & deposits,
= e i E b [ 510N, 4%
— (33

A

Compensation,
52280, 44%
[nvestments,
5393M, 70%
Liabilities

Total liabilities increased by $41.5 million, primarily due to the increase in outstanding claims liabilities of
$36.1 million, accounts payable of $2.5 million, pension liability of $2.4 million, Member Risk
Management Fund balance of $1.7 million, and unallocated loss adjusting expense reserve of $1.6 million,
offset by the decrease in dividend payable of $1.1 million, unearned premium revenues of $716,000, and
other liabilities of $989,000.
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Revenues

Total premium revenues generated for the fiscal year were $294.6 million, an increase of 2.3% from the
previous year or $7.1 million. This year, the Property & Liability and Workers” Compensation Programs
generated an increase in revenues of $3.9 million and $7.0 million. respectively. primarily driven by the
increased cost of coverage and membership growth. The Health Benefils Program’s revenues were
essentially flat and CIPA had a decrease in revenues by $1.4 million, driven mainly by the decision to
substantially reduce the number of new OCIP projects enrolled.

During fiscal vear 2022-23, the Federal Reserve continued to raise the short-term interest rates to the highest
level in many years. As a result, ASCIP’s investment portfolio experienced a large amount of unrecalized
losses of $8.8 million this year. However, as securities matured during the year. ASCIP was able to reinvest
at a higher yield; therefore, interest income improved significantly compared to last year. ASCIP earned a
total of $9.2 million in interest income. net of fees. compared to $5.1 million last year. Since ASCIP holds
most ol its investments to maturity, this unrealized loss is expected to reverse itself as securities mature.

Total Revenues by Program for the Year Ended
June 30,2023 Property &

Liability,
5727\, 24%

Health Benetits, Worker's
S170N], 58%

Compensation,

S49N 17%

Expenses

Total expenses were $339.5 million, an overall increase of $68.8 million or 23% from the prior vear. The
increase was mostly driven by a large increase in claims expenses in the Property & Liability Program due
to a surge in claims and litigation activity, as we emerged from the pandemic. The claim payments increased
by $25.2 million. Case reserves. IBNR and ULAEL reserves increased by $34.9 million. Excess insurance
premiums. health benefits premiums, and other expenses increased by a total of $8.7 million. In fiscal year
2022-23. the Executive Committee declared rebates totaling $17.6 million from the Workers’
Compensation and Health Benefits Programs. which was $3.2 million more than the previous year’s rebate
amount.
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Breakdown of Expenses for the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Risk Control &

Administrative

Expense, §30)\],
Premium 9o,

Dividenc
SI8NL 5% . —

Insurance Claims Expense,
Premiums, 51850, 55%
S106M L 31%

Net Position

Despite having a decrease in net position of $44.4 million due to adverse claims development, primarily in
the Property & Liability Program, ASCIPs overall financial health continued to remain strong, ending the

year with a net position of $173 million.

Net Position by Program at June 30,2023

Property &
CIPA, S9N, 5% Liability, S12N, 7%

Health Benetits ,

$39M,23% \

Worker's
Compensation,
S1I4NL 65%

1
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ANALYSIS OF BALANCES AND TRANSACTION OF INDIVIDUAL PROGRAMS

Property & Liability Program

The total assets in the Property & Liability Program decreased by $5.4 million to $212.0 million as of
June 30, 2023. The decrease was mainly attributable to the decrease in cash. offset by the increase in
investments. prepaids and receivables. Total cash decreased by $33.3 million, ending the year with $30.8
million. In fiscal year 2022-23. a short-term investiment portfolio was established to take advantage of the
high short-term yields. Majority of the cash in the LA County Treasurer’s Pool was moved to the short-
term portfolio.

The Property & Liability investment portfolio balance increased by approximately $19.1 million to an
ending balance of $144.6 million as of June 30, 2023. The increase was mainly driven by the cash transfer
in from the LA County Treasurer’s Pool, offset by the market value losses due to rising rates. For the fiscal
year, the portfolio earned $4.2 million in interest income which was reinvested in the portfolio and had an
increase in the net unrealized loss of $1.8 million. As of June 30, 2023, the portfolio had an average yield
of 1.45% and an average duration of 2.3 years, compared to a yield of 1.16% and an average maturity of
3.1 years at June 30, 2022, During the year. the portfolio drifted shorter as securities were getting closer to
their maturity dates.

The following graph depicts the asset allocation of the investment portfolio:

Property & Liabilily Program Investments
Assel Allocation at June 30,2023
Agencv CMBS, Asset-Backed Securities, Cash & NMoneyv Market,

52N, 2% \ “—’V oM, 4%
LS. Treasury : B g < :
S30ML 35“9\ | Corporate Notes,

S19M], 13%

_

Foreign Government,

SN, 3%

Short Term,

o 20N, 13%
Taxable Municipa 20 ?

540, 3%

Total liabilities increased by $20.9 million to $202.0 million as of June 30, 2023, primarily due to the
increase of $17.4 million in unpaid claims liability, $2.3 million in Member Risk Management Fund balance
and $2.1 million in pension liability, offset by the decrease in accounts payable and other liabilities of $0.8
million. The increase in unpaid claims liability was the result of $26.0 million increase in case reserves.
offset by $9.2 million decrease in IBNR. Strengthening in liability reserves was in response to the increased
costs of awards and settlements observed as we experienced a surge in litigation activity and resulting
discovery and case reserving in the first six months of the fiscal year. As in the past, the outstanding claims
liability for unpaid losses as of June 30, 2023 was recorded at the actuarially determined undiscounted
central estimate.
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Net position in the Propetty & Liability Program decreased by $24.8 million to an ending balance of $11.8
million at June 30, 2023. The decrease was primarily caused by the significant increase in claims liabilities.

Total premiun revenues increased by approximately $3.4 million from the prior year to $71.9 million,
primarily driven by the increase in rates in the Property, General Liability, and CSA lines of coverage. The
composite renewal rate increased by 4.6% from the prior year. The program added one member and lost
four existing members in this program year, reducing the total number of members to 109, In 2022-23, the
program insurcd approximately $41 billion in property values and 1 million students. The program also
generated $108,000 in other income from the administration of other JPAs.

The total operating expenses increased by $31.5 million predominantly duve to the increase in claim-related
expenses, resulting from large properly losses and increased litigation activity in the liability line of
coverage.

To avoid incurring a catastrophic or severe loss in any one program year, ASCIP purchases excess insurance
and/or reinsurance coverage in many of its programs. In fiscal year 2022-23, the total excess/reinsurance
premiums increased by $2.3 million, mainly due to the increase in property reinsurance premiuvms of §$3.7
million, offset by the decrease of $1.4 million in cyber premium as a result of ASCIP deciding to self-insure
{his line of coverage.

Similar to last year, ASCIP continued to retain a self-insured retention of $3 million per occurrence in the
General/Auto Liability and CSA lines of coverage. ASCIP purchased reinsurance for the $2 million in
excess of $3 million layer with no agpregate deductible and took a 30 percent quota share of losses with
three reinsurers in this layer. Regarding the Property coverage portion of this program, ASCIP continued
to carry a $1 million deductible and had an aggregate corridor deductible of $2.5 million in the layer above
the $1 million deductible as in the previous year. ASCIP purchased excess insurance above this level up to
$500 million. Effective April 1, 2022, ASCIP changed its property program excess coverage renewal date
from July 1 to April 1. Also, effective April 1, 2022, ASCIP transferred the coverage for the $2.5 million
aggregate corridor deductible to CIPA. Effective April 1, 2023, the corridor deductible with CIPA increased
to $3.0 million.

General administration costs increased by approximately $1.4 million, primarily due to the increase in
pension expense. ASCIP is part of the CalPERS Miscellaneous Risk Pool for its Defined Benefit Pension
Plan. As such, ASCIP’s pension liability and expense are based on the CalPERS actuarial calculation.

Workers’ Compensation Program

The Workers’ Compensation Program ended the year with total assets of $228.0 million, an increase of
$13.4 million from the prior year. The increase in total assets was mainly driven by the increase in
contributions from new members combined with the decision to move the intangible right-to-use lease asset
to this program. The increase in capital assets of $19.6 million was due to the decision to move the capital
assets related to its newly purchased facility to the Workers’ Compensation Program. For the year, the
program earned a total of $3.3 million in interest income that was re-invested in the portfolio and recognized
a decrease in net unrealized investment market value of $6.2 million, compared to $21 million last year.
During the year, the duration of the Workers’ Compensation investment portfolio was shortened to 4.15
years from 5.10 years as securities in the portfolio were moving closer to their maturities. As of June 30,
2023, the portfolio had a book yield of 1.48%, compared to 1.45% yield in the prior year.
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The following graph depicts the asset allocation of the investment portfolio:

Workers Compensation Program Investments
Asset Allocation at June 30, 2023
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The total liabilities in the Workers™ Compensation Program increased by $25.3 million to $114.6 million.
The increase in unpaid claims liability. and facility land lease liability attributed to the majority of the total
liability increase. This lease liability was recorded at $7 million per GASB 87. Lease Accounting. The
unpaid claims liability increased by $16.1 million to $86.6 million.

The Workers™ Compensation Program closed the fiscal year with a decrease in net position of $11.8 million.
which brought the ending net position down to $113.6 million as of June 30, 2023. This decrease was
mainly due to the dividend distribution of $9.6 million and $6.2 million in unrealized losses on investments.
Without the dividend distribution and the investment unrealized loss, the program would have had an earned
surplus of $4.0 million.

Member contributions increased by nearly $7.0 million to $49.3 million, primarily due to the growth in
membership. The composite premium rate decreased by 1.6%. For the year, the program added five new
members and lost one charter school member due to closing of the school. The Workers® Compensation
Program premiums are based on payroll. For fiscal year 2022-23, the program had a total payroll of $4.2
billion. an increase of $619 million from the previous year mainly due to the addition of five new members.
The program insured a total of 55 members in 2022-23.

Total operating expenses increased by $30.1 million from the prior year, primarily due to the increase in
claim-related expenses of approximately $27 million. Professional services and general administrative costs
also increased by $2.4 million, mostly due to the increase in claim adjusting costs as a result of adding new
members. Due to the substantial equity in the program and to help members with their fiscal challenges.
this year ASCIP’s Executive Committee declared another dividend totaling $9.6 million. Over the last

seventeen years, the Workers® Compensation Program has returned a total of $85.6 million back to its
members.
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Health Benefits Program

As of June 30, 2023, the Health Benefits Program had total assets of $54.5 million, a decrease of $15.7
million from the prior year. The decrease was mainly due to the issuance of member dividends. Cash in the
LA County Treasurer’s Pool went down by $6.3 million, primarily due to the transfer of $10.0 million to
the investment portfolio to purchase long-term investments to maximize investment earnings. The
investment portfolio balance increased by $9.5 million as of June 30, 2023 after adjusting for unrealized
loss.

The following graph depicts the asset allocation of the investment portfolio:

Health Benefits Program Investments
Asset Allocation at June 30,2023

Agency CMBS, Asset-Backed
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The total liabilities decreased by approximately $7.0 million to $15.4 million. The decrease was attributable
to the transferring of the new building land lease liability to the Workers® Compensation Program. Total
liabilities included $3.3 million in premium dividend payable. Although $8.0 million in dividend were
declared, $3.3 million were unpaid and accrued as dividend payable at the end of the year. The unpaid claims
liability increased slightly by $400,000 to $6.3 million, mostly driven by the increase in IBNR reserves for
the medical plan.

Member contributions totaled nearly $170 million including $123 million from the medical and
miscellaneous plans, $41.4 million from the dental plans, and $5.5 million from the vision plans. Total
member contributions for the year was essentially flat. The program earned total interest income of $1.4
million this year, compared to $340,000 last year, due to higher interest rates, but recognized an unrealized
loss of $687,000.
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The Health Benefits Program incurred total operating expenses of $179.2 million, an increase of $9.5
million. The overall increase was predominantly due to the increase in claim payments and increase in carrier
premiums from the medical plans as a result of premium rate increases. Similar to the last five years, due to
the program’s favorable overall loss experience and substantial equity balance, the Executive Committee
declared another dividend in the amount of $8.0 million, compared to $5.1 million declared in the prior year,
which brought the total cumulative dividends issued to $46.7 million in the last six years.

The program ended the year with a net position of $48.1 million, a decrease of $8.6 miliion, mainly due to
the dividend distribution and unrealized losses in investments. Without the dividend and unrealized loss, the
programn would have an earned surplus of $118,000.

Captive Insurance for Public Agencies, Limited, (CIPA)

CIPA is a licensed pure captive insurance company operating for the sole benefit of ASCIP. CIPA was
incorporated and received its Certificate of Authority from the Insurance Commissioner of the State of
Hawaii in 2005. CIPA utilizes a captive administrator with an office in Honolulu, Hawaii, along with
contracted staff to manage the various programs, described below. ASCIP also provides some minimal
administrative support to CIPA.

Owner-Controller Insurance Program (OQCIP)

The OCIP insures new construction and renovation projects undertaken by participating districts, covering
contractors and all their subcontractors on any work at or emanating from the project site. CIPA provides

workers’ compensation, employers® liability and general liability deductible reimbursement coverage of
$500,000 per occurrence,

In fiscal year 2022-23, the OCIP Program enrolled one new stand-alone construction project and closed
seven projects resulting in total net enrolled revenue of $343,000. In compliance with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP), the OCIP program recognizes revenues over the life of the projects.

Student Accident Program

Effective July 1, 2016, CIPA began providing reinsurance for a student accident insurance program offered
to all ASCIP meinbers. Under the terms of a reinsurance agreement with a fronting carrier, CIPA participates
on a 50% quota share basis in the program.

Pupil Transportation Program

Effective July I, 2018, ASCIP extended automobile liability and errors and omissions fiability coverage to
one High School District for its pupil transportation services, where ASCIP retains $500,000 per occurrence
and obtained specific reinsurance for $4,500,000 excess of the $500,000 retention. CIPA provides self-
insured retention reimbursement coverage to ASCIP for losses within the $500,000 retention, subject to the
district’s $25,000 deductible per occurrence.
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Workers' Compensation Self- Insured Retention Assumption (SIRA)

In 2019, ASCIP entered into a Self-Insured Retention Assumption agreement (SIRA) with a member school
district to assume certain workers’ compensation liabilities from the member district. In a separate loss
portfolio transfer agreement effective on the same date, ASCIP transferred 100% of its ultimate net loss
related to the aforemeuntioned liabilities to two different reinsurance partners on a 50-50 percent basis. One
of these reinsurance partners was CIPA.

In June 2021, ASCIP entered into another SIRA with a member JPA to assume their tail workers’
compensation claims liability.

Corridor Program

Effective Apri! 1, 2022, CIPA reinsures ASCIP’s property program for a $2.5 million annual aggregate
corridor layer that sits between ASCIP’s $1 million per-occurrence self-insured retention and the attachment
of the excess property coverage from third-party carriers. Effective April 1,2023, the corridor layer increased
to $3 million.

Effective July 1, 2022, CIPA also assumed a casualty facultative excess of loss coverage for ASCIP’s losses
occurting in a $2.5 million annual aggregate corridor. This coverage expired on July 1, 2023 and was not
renewed.

CIPA generated a net income of $0.7 million, compared to $1.23 million the prior year. The decrease was
driven by a reduction in QCIP projects wrilten and insurance rates for the Student Accident program.

Facis or Conditions That Are Expected to Haye a Significant Effect on The Financial Position or Result

of Qperations

One of the fastest growing exposures is personal tort liability claims arising from accusations of lack of
oversight and protection with regards to childhood sexual assault involving students.

The recent passage of California Assembly Bill 218, which took effect January 1, 2020, substantially
increases the statute of limitations for filing claims based on such accusations. Jury verdicts are
~unpredictable. While the future is uncertain and dependent on many case-by-case factors, this could have a
substantial negative impact on not only future claim liabilities, but also on insurance and reinsurance carrier’s
willingness to underwrite this coverage for schools in the State of California.

In an effort to control the uncertainty of this potential liability ASCIP moved its coverage for this risk from
occurrence-based to claims-made policy coverage effective July 1, 2020, ASCIP has also devoted increased
staff and resources to assist our members in preventing this growing threat

Another area of concern is the rising cost of property coverage as a result of the growing number of
catastrophic wildfires in the State of California. The last three years have seen billions of dollats of losses
throughout the State. While the public utility companies strive to mitigate this risk with planned power
outages, these outages create other risks of loss. ASCIP continues to invest in several prevention and
mitigation efforts to control the cost of these potential losses. The cost of this coverage is expected to
continue to rise.
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Cyber security is another growing risk. Attacks such as ransomware, malware, phishing, hacking, identity
theft, security breaches and social engineering are expected to continue to increase, with schools becoming
a growing target for such attackers. ASCIP has devoted increased staff and resources to assist our members
in protecting themselves from this growing threat, both before and after an attack. This is a global geo-
econonic problem and the cost, both economic and social, is expected to continue 1o rise,

Insurance providers, such as ASCIP, depend heavily on investment returns to fund a portion of our claims
liabilities. Market interest rates for fixed income securities continued to increase last year, but appear to be

close to stabilizing. This has resulted in the recording of substantial unrealized losses. Since ASCIP expects -

to hold most of its securities to maturity, these unrealized losses are expected {o reverse themselves over the
next several years.
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STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2023
Memo Only
ASSETS: 2023 2022
Current assets: . .
Cash and cash equivalents $ 38,889,525 $ 71,518,657
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 21,253,476 20,353,458
Accounts receivable 18,895,520 16,710,115
Prepaid expenses and other assets 14,040,571 12,402,566
Investments maturing within one year 65,566,645 14,099,657
Restricted investments maturing within one year 12,041,819 14,348,498
Total current assets 170,687,556 155,432,951
Noncurrent assets:
Other receivable 5,063,162
Investments, net of amount maturing within one year 315,684,477 341,389,126
Deposits 4,721,090 4,721,700
Capital assets, net 16,351,869 15,582,715
Intangible right-to-use iease asset 6,875,663 6,983,903
Total noncurrent assets 348,696,261 368.677.444
Total assets 519,383 817 524,110,395
DEFERRED OQUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Deferred outflows of resources for pension 2.445.419 1,355,136
LIABILITIES:
Current [iabilities:
Accounts payable 12,165,607 9,585,705
Unearned premium revenues 1,042,065 1,757,870
Premium dividends payable 6,163,227 7,252,830
Licensing agreement obligation 267,622
Member risk management fund 19,367,385 17,677,169
Safety credit payable 1,886,001 2,676,289
Current portion of unpaid claims 66,196,285 45,824,002
Unallocated claims adjustment expense 19,657,707 18,092,615
Total current Habilities 126,478,367 103,134,102
Noncurrent liabilities:
Unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses, net of current portion 210,611,818 194,837,609
Net pension liability 3,167,804 1,276,819
Deferred retirement benefit 528,741
Lease liability 7,002,627 7,002,627
Total noncurrent liabilities 221,310,990 203,117,055
Total liabilities 347,789,357 306.251,157
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Deferred inflows of resources for pension 42.609 772,534
NET POSITION:
Invested in capital assets 16,224,905 15,563,991
Restricted 12,041,819 14,348,498
Unrestricted 145,730,546 188,529,351
Total net position $ 173,997,270 $ 218,441,840

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 19
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OPERATING REVENUES:
Premium contributions from members
Other income

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Claims expense, net of reimbursements of $17,380,206
Provision for IBNR and case reserves
Provision for ULAF reserves
Excess/réinsurance premiums
Health benefits insurance premiums
Contract services
Loss control and risk management
General and administrative
Premium dividends
Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Interest and dividend income
Net realized/unrealized foss on investments
Total non-operating income (foss)

Decrease in net position
Net position, beginning of year

Net position, end of year

2023

Memo Only
2022

$ 294,480,133

$ 287,307,997

109,929 145,571
294,590,062 287.453.568
147,161,311 121,971,153
36,146,493 3,260,027
1,565,092 (446,983)
29,708,400 31,297,083
76,838,285 74,467,505
12,594,470 12,169,483
3,875,299 3,534,437
13,970,114 9,983,609
17,639,142 14,445,618
339,498,606 270,681,932
(44,908,544) 16,771,636
9,240,661 5,133,476
(8,776,687) (30,183.717)
463.974 (25,050.241)
(44,444,570) (8,278,605)
218,441,840 226,720 A45

$ 173,997,270

$ 218,441,840

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CASH FLOWS FROM OPLERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash received from premium contributions and other income
Cash paid for claims
Cash paid for claims in excess layer
Cash received from reinsurer
Cash paid for benefits, insurance, and other expenses
Cash paid to employees
Cash paid to pension plan and retirees
Net cash provided {used) by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of capital assels
Principal payment on lease liability
Net cash used by capital and financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of investments
Proceeds from sale or maturity of investments
Interest and investment income received
Net cash used by investing activitics

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

RECONCILIATION TO STATEMENT OF NET POSITION:
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided {used) by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortizatien expense
{Increase) decrease in:
Accounts receivable and other receivable
Prepaid expenses and other assets and deposits
Deferred outflows of resources
Increasc (decrease) in:
Accounis payable and other liabilities
Unearned preniium revenues
Membert risk management {und
Unpaid claims and claim adjustment expense
Net pension liability
Deferred retirement benefit
Deferred inflows of resources

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL, AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Unrealized loss on investments

Acquisition of right-to-use lease assel through lease liability

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,

2023

Memo Only
2022

$ 293,741,432

$ 285,000,261

(147,161,312) (122,015,689)
(17.380,206) {4,706,923)
12,263,811 5,820,945
(145,234 424) (154,804,653)
(8,479,701) (7,503,649)
(975,538) (645,918)
(13,225,938) 1,144,374
(1.202.359) (11,759,726)
(39,906)
(1,202,359) (11,799,632)
(225,383,731)  (202,413,340)
190,738,943 153,649,728
11,343,971 5,016,114
(23,300,817 (43,747,498)
(37.720.114) (54.402,756)
97,872,115 152,274,871

£ 60,143,001

$ 97,872,115

3 38,889,525
21,253,476

5 77,518,657
20,353,438

$§ 60,143,001

§ 97872115

§ (44,908,544)

541,445

6,939,436}
{1,631,395)
(1,090,283)

432,479
(715,805)
1,690,216
27,711,584
2,496,829
(77,103)
(729,925)

$ 16,771,636

503,896

(3,335,153)
(9,034,360)
11,940

(7,402,910)

(3,609,000)
5,604,868
2,768,508

(1,889,472

754,421

(13,225,938

$ 1,144,374

$ (8,425,495

§ (23,257,076)

b -

$ 7,042,533
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Financial Reporting Entity

Alliance of Schools for Cooperative Insurance Programs (ASCIP) was formed in October 1985,
under a joint powers agreement (JPA) between participating school districts located within Los
Angeles and Orange Counties, pursuant to Title 1, Division 7, Chapter 5, Article 1 (Section 6500 et
seq.) of the California Government Code. Subsequently, ASCIP expanded to a statewide charter
effective 1994. The purpose of ASCIP is to provide a more viable and economical insurance
program to its members than they might otherwise be able to obtain operating on their own. During
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, there were 138 participants in ASCIP programs.

The annual deposit premium for each member is calculated based upon factors normally used to
calculate annual insurance premiums, such as cxposure units, coverage rates and experience
modification factors.

In the event of the dissolution of ASCIP, the participating members would teceive a pro-rata share
of any fund equity or be liable for a pro-rata share of any debts and liabilities based upon the
premiums and claims of such school districts.

ASCIP includes all funds that are controlled by or dependent on ASCIP's governing board for
financial reporting purposes. ASCIP has considered all potential component vnits in determining
how to define the reporting entity, using criteria set forth in accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America,

Component units are legally separate organizations for which ASCIP is financially accountable.
Component units may include organizations that are {iscally dependent on ASCIP in that ASCIP
approves their budget, the issuance of their debt or the levying of their taxes. In addition,
component units are other legally separate organizations for which ASCIP is not financially
accountable but the nature and significance of the organization's refationship with ASCIP is such
that exclusion would cause ASCIP's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. For
financial reporting purposes, the component unit discussed below is reported in ASCIP's financial
statements because of their relationship with ASCIP. The componeat unit, although a legally
separate entity, is reported in the financial statements using the blended presentation method as if
they were part of ASCIP's operations.

The Captive [nsurance for Public Agencies Limited (CIPA) was incorporated on January 25, 2005,
in the State of Hawaii, and is authorized to transact the business of a captive insurance company.

CIPA insures {or reinsures) coverages that are either, materially non-homogenous across the
membership of ASCIP and feasible to be insured or reinsured or are non-District risks which
ASCIP or its members have facilitated being insured as reducing potential risk to ASCIP programs
or its members.

CIPA's fiscal year end is June 30. ASCIP retains a local captive manager and program administrator
of CIPA's insurance program. CIPA issues separate financial statements which are maintained by
ASCIP.
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Basis of Presentation

For financial reporting purposes, ASCIP is considered a special-purpose government engaged only
in business-type activities. Accordingly, the accompanying financial statements are presented as a
proprietary fund on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with governmental generally
accepted accounting principles. Under the accrual basis, revenues and the related assets are
recognized when earned, and expenses and related liabilities are recognized when the obligation is
incurred, Operating revenues include premium deposits from members net of any applicable rate
credits. Operating expenses include the provision for claims and claims adjustment expenses,
insurance premiums, premium dividends, and general and administrative expenses.

Proprietary Funds - Proprietary fund reporting focuses on the determination of operating income,
changes in net position, financial position, and cash flows. Proprietary funds are classified as
enterprise or infernal service. ASCIP has three enterprise funds and no internal service funds. These
enterprise funds are also referred to as Programs.

1) Property & Liability Fund

Members participate in the following coverages:
General & Auto Liability:

A self-funded liability insurance plan covering claims up to $5,000,000 per occusrence. Some
policy years include a reinsured liability insurance program covering claims within various
corridor/aggregate layers and/or quota share positions, Members have the option to choose
deductibles ranging from $0 - $250,000, and with reinsurance support as follows:

Property:

A self-funded properly insurance plan covering claims up to $1,000,000 per occurrence. Some
policy years include an additional self-funded aggregate layer up to $3,000,000. Members have
the option to choose deductibles ranging from $5,000 - $250,000,

A Tully reinsured property insurance program covering claims beyond the self-funded layer, up
to $500,000,000 per occurrence. This limit was $600,000,000 prior to July 1, 2020.

Crime;

A sell-funded crime insurance plan, including employee faithful performance, covering claims
up to $250,000. Each district has a $500 deductible.

A fully insured insurance plan covering claims above $250,000 up to various limits ranging
between $1,000,000 and $5,000,000.

Auto Physical Damage:

A self-funded auto physical insurance plan covering the replacement cost of the damaged
vehicle above each school district's $1,500 deductible.
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2)

3)

Cyber:

A self-funded cyber insurance plan covering forensic, recovery, and restoration services with
the limited ransom coverage above a $5,000 deductible up to $1,000,000, with an aggregate
limit of $5,000,000.

Worlers' Compensation Fund

A self-funded workers' compensation plan covering claims up to $1,000,000 per occurrence for
workers' compensation and employer liability benefits, Members have the option to choose
deductibles ranging from $0 - $350,000.

A fully insured excess coverage for claims excess of $1,000,000 per occurrence fo statutory
limits.

Health Benefits Fund

Members participate in the following coverages:
Medical:

A fully-insured Health Maintenance Organization (HMO) plan administered through United
Healthcare and Kaiser Permanente covering medical benefits with various plan options.

A fully-insured Preferred Provider Organization (PPO) plan administered through United
Healthcare covering medical benefits with various plan options.

A self-funded Blue Cross/Blue Shield Preferred Provider Organization (PPO) and a flex-funded
Health Maintenance Organization (HMO) plan up to $150,000 per individual per year,
administered through the Self-Insured Schools of California (SISC).

Dental:

A self-funded PPO dental plan administered through Delta Dental of California covering
benefits with various plan designs.

A fully-insured dental HMO plan administered through DeltaCare USA covering benefits with
various plan designs.

Yision:

A self-funded PPO vision plan administered through Vision Service Plan covering benefits with
various plan designs.

A fully-insured vision plan administered through DeltaCare Vision covering benefits with
various plan designs. :
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Ancillary Programs:

A fully-insured Income Protection plan administered through Voya Financial covering short-
term and long-term disability.

A fully-insured Long-Term Care plan administered through Unum Provident covering benefits
for assistance in daily living activities or cognitive impairment.

A fully-insured Life Insurance plan administered through Voya Financial covering Life and
Accidental Death and Dismemberment (AD&D) with various coverage limits.

A defined contribution alternative plan offered in lieu of social sccurity for part-time, seasonal,
and temporary employees.

In addition to these three funds {programs), ASCIP’s component unit, CIPA, accounts for the
following coverages on a full-accrual basis.

1) Owner-Controlled Insurance Program (QCIP)

2)

Members may participate in the following plans:

A self-funded OCIP Plan that covers public school construction projects, their construction
contractors and subcontractors for workers' compensation and general liability up to $500,000
per cccurrence and a fully-reinsured OCIP plan between $500,000 to statutory limit for
workers' compensation benefits and between $500,000 to various limits for various general
liability coverages,

Student Accidental

A self-funded student accident program that provides reimbursement for medical expenses and
benefits for accidental death and dismemberment. The coverage has a $250 deductible with
varying maximum limits between $10,000 and $25,000 depending on the benefit.

3) Pupil Transit

4)

A self-funded pupil transit plan that provides automobile Tiability and errors and omissions
liability coverage up to $500,000 per occurrence with member deductible of $25,000 per
occurrence and a fully-insured pupil transit program that provides automobile fiability and
errors and omissions liability coverage between $500,000 to $5,000,000 per occurrence.

Workers’ Compensation Self-ITnsured Retention Assumption

A self-funded assumption of certain workers’ compensation claims below purchased
deductibles ranging up to $1,000,000.
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5) Corridoxr Reinsurance

Effective April 1, 2022, CIPA reinsures ASCIP’s property coverage for a $2.5 million annual
aggregate cortidor layer that sits between ASCIP’s $1 million per-occurrence self-insured
retention and the attachment of the excess property coverage from third-party carriers.

Effective July 1, 2022, CIPA also assumed a casualty facultative excess of loss coverage for
ASCIP’s losses occurring in a $2.5 million annual aggregate corridor. This coverage expired on
Tuly 1, 2023 and was nof renewed.

Effective April 1, 2023, the aggregate corridor fayer was raised to $3.0 million.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, ASCIP considers investments in the Los Angeles
County Treasury Pool (LACTP), investment in the State of California’s Local Agency Investment
Fund (LAIF), and money market mutual funds to be cash equivalents.

Invesiment and Investment Pools

ASCIP records its investments at fair value and cash in LAIF and LACTP investment pools at
amortized cost which approximates fair value. Changes in fair value are reported as revenue in the
Statement of Revenues, Fxpenses, and Changes in Net Position. The effect of recording investments
and investment pools at fair value is reflected as a net unrealized gain (loss) on investments in the
statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position. Fair value of investments has been
determined based on quoted market prices.

Restricted Asseis

Restricted assets arise when restrictions on their use change the normal understanding of the
availability of the asset. Such constraints are either imposed by creditors, contributors, grantors, or
laws of other governments or imposed by enabling legislation. The CIPA OCIP program requires
that certain investments be set aside as collateral for the self-insured retention. These are classified
as restricted investments because their use is limited. In addition, amounts equivalent to the
Member Risk Management Fund (Note 8) and Safety Credit Payable (Note 9) are also classified as
restricted cash and equivalents because they can only be used at member direction to offset future
premiums or for other risk management and safety expenses.

Prepaid Expenses

Prepaid expenses represent amounts paid in advance of receiving goods or services.

Deposits

Deposits represent amounts paid on variable cost reserve calculations, which are based on one and a
half months of projected claim payments.
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Capital Assets

Equipment acquired by ASCIP is capitalized. Depreciation of capital assets is charged as an
expense against operations, and accumulated depreciation is reported on the statement of net
position. Depreciation has been provided over the estimated useful lives ranging from three to thirty
years using the straight-line method of depreciation. Depreciation expense amounted to $433,205
for the year ended June 30, 2023,

Unearned Revenue (Premium Income)

Unearned revenue arises when potential revenue does not meet the criteria for recognition in the
current period or when resources are received by ASCIP prior to the incurrence of qualifying
expenditures. In subsequent periods, when revenue recognition criteria are met, or when ASCIP has
a legal claim (o the resources, the liability for unearned revenue is removed from the statement of
net position and revenue is recognized.

Unpaid Claims Liabilities

ASCIP establishes claims liabilities based on estimates of the ultimate cost of claims (including
future claim adjustment expenses) that have been reported but not settled, and of claims that have
been incurred but not reported. The length of time for which such costs must be estimated varies
depending on the coverage involved. Estimated amounts of salvage and subrogation and
reinsurance recoverable on unpaid claims are deducted from the lability for unpaid claims. Because
actual claims costs depend on such complex factors as inflation, changes in doctrines of legal
liability, and damage awards, the process used in computing claims liabilities does not necessarily
result in an exact amount, particularly for coverages such as general liability,

Claims liabilities are recomputed periodically using a variety of actuarial and statistical techniques
to produce current estimates that reflect recent settlements, claim frequency, and other economic
and social factors. A provision for inflation in the calculation of estimated future claims costs is
implicit in the caleulation because reliance is placed both on actual historical data that reflect past
inflation and on other factors that are considered to be appropriate modifiers of past experience.
Adjustments to claims liabilities are charged or credited to expense in the periods in which they are
made.

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets and liabilities, the statement of net position reports separate sections for
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources. Deferred outflows of tesources
represent a consumption of resources that applies to a future period(s) and will not be recognized as
an outflow of resources (expense) until then. Conversely, deferred inflows of resources represent an
acquisition of resources that applies to a future period(s) and will not be recognized as an inflow of
resources (revenue) until that time.

Contributions made to ASCIP’s pension plan after the measurement date but before the fiscal year

end are recorded as a deferred outflow of resources and will reduce the net pension liability in the
nexf {iscal year.
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Additional factors involved in the calculation of ASCIP’s pension expense and liability include the
differences between expected and actual experience, changes in assumptions, differences between
projected and actual investment earnings, changes in proportion, and differences between ASCIP’s
contributions and proportionate share of contributions. These factors are recorded as deferred
outflows and inflows of resources and amortized over various periods.

Leases

ASCIP recognizes a lease when the lease terms include a noncancelable period of more than one
year. ASCIP recognized a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset (lease asset) at the
commencement of a lease and initially measures them at the present value of payments expected to
be made during the lease tetm. The lease liability is reduced by the principal portion of lease
payments made and the lease asset is amortized on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease
term or the useful life of the underlying asset. :

ASCIP estimates its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate for expected lease payments
and the noncancable period for its leases. Additionally, ASCIP monitors changes in circumstances
that would require a remeasurement of its leases, and will remeasure the lease liability if certain
changes occur that are expected to significantly affect their lease liability.

Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows/inflows of resources related
to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of ASCIP’s portion
of the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) Miscellaneous plan and
additions to/deductions from the Plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same
basis as they are reported by CalPERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of
employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.
Investments are reported at fair value.

Deferred Retirement Benefit

The deferred retirement benefif liability was valued using an actuarially calculated present value of
accrued benefits model. Benefit payments are recognized when currently due and payable in
accordance with the benefit terms.

Premium Dividends

An accrual for premium dividends is estimated based on ASCIP's historical and current claims
experience and recorded upon approval by the Board.

Excess Insurance/Reinsurance

ASCIP uses excess insurance and reinsurance agreements to reduce its exposure to large losses on
all types of insured events. Excess insurance permits recovery of a portion of losses from excess
insurers, although it does not discharge the primary liability of ASCIP as direct insurer of the risks
insured. ASCIP does not report excess insured risks as liabilities unless it is probable that those
risks will not be covered by excess insurers.
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Income Taxes

ASCIP's income is exempt from Federal income taxes under Internal Revenue Code Section 115
and the corresponding section of the California Revenue and Taxation Code.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America requires management to malke estimates and assumptions. These
estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures/expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents as of June 30, 2023, consist of the following:

Cash on hand and in banks $ 5,040,206
Certificates of Deposit 2,400,000
Investments classified as cash equivalents:
Investment in Local Agency Investment Fund 60,042
Investment in Los Angeles County Treasury Pool 45,896,654
Investment in Money Market Mutual Funds 6,746,099
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 00,143,001
Investmenits

Investments as of June 30, 2023, are classified as follows:

Investments maturing within one year

Unrestricted $ 65,566,645
Restricted 12,041,819
Investments maturing after one year
Unrestricted 315,684,477
Total Investments $ 393,292,941
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Policies and Practices

ASCIP is authorized under Califormia Government Code to make direct investments in local agency
bonds, notes, or warrants within the State; U.S. Treasury instruments; registered State warrants or
treasury notes; securities of the U.S. Government, or its agencies; bankers acceptances; commercial
paper; certificates of deposit placed with commercial banks and/or savings and loan companies;
repurchase or reverse repurchase agreements; medium term corporate notes; shares of beneficial
interest issued by diversified management companies, certificates of participation, obligations with
first priority security; and collateralized mortgage obligations.

Investmenti in Los Angeles County Treasury Pool

ASCIP is a voluntary participant in the Los Angeles County Treasury Pool (LACTP). The cost of
ASCIP's investment in the pool is reported in the accompanying financial statements at amounts
based upon ASCIP's pro-rata share of the fair value provided by the County Treasurer for the entire
portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance available for withdrawal is
based on the accounting records maintained by the County Treasurer, which is recorded on the
amortized cost basis. For additional information visit the Los Angeles County Treasurer's website
at: https://ttc.lacounty.gov/.

Investment in the State of California’s Local Agency Investment Fund

ASCIP is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated by
California Government Code Section 16429 under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of
California. The cost of ASCIP's investment in the pool is reported in the accompanying financial
statement at amounts based upon ASCIP's pro-rata share provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF
portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance available for withdrawal is
based on the accounting records maintained by LAIF, which is recorded on the amortized cost
basis. For additional information visit LAIF's website at: www.treasurer.ca.gov/pmia-laif.
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General Authorizations

Limitations as they relate to interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk are

indicated in the schedules below:

Maximum Maximum Maximum

Remaining Percentage Investment
Awuthorized Investment Type Maturify Of Portfolio In One Issuer
U.S. Treasury Obligations 20 years None None
U.S. Agency Securities 20 years None 25%
Supranationals 20 years 30% 15%
Municipal Securities 20 years None 5%/3%
Banker's Acceptance 180 days 40% 5%
Commercial Paper 270 days 40% 3%
Negotiable Certificates of Deposits S years 30% 3%
Repurchase Agreements 1 year None None
Medium-Term Corporate Notes 5 years 30% 5%
Money Market Funds N/A 20% 5%
Mortgage- and Asset-Backed Securities 5 years 20% 3%
County Pooled Investment Funds N/A None None
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) N/A $75 million $75 million
Joint Powers Authority Pools N/A None None
Bank Deposits N/A None None

Additional notes:

- The purchases of U.S. Treasury, Municipal, Federal Agency, and Negotiable CD securities with

maturities in excess of five (5) years is permitted, subject to the follow constraints: U.S.
Treasury, Municipal, Federal Agency, and Negotiable CD securities shall have a maximum
remaining maturity at the time of purchase of twenty (20) years or less, and Federal Agency
mortgage-backed securities (including pass-throughs and CMOQs) shall have maximum
remaining average life of ten years or less.

The per issuer limit for non-government issuers is 5% for securities rated in the AAA or AA
category (Short-Term A-1 category) and 3% for securities rated in the A category.

A per stale exposure of 10% as percentage of fotal portfolio is followed for municipal
obligations.

‘The maximum maturity for time certificates of deposit is one year with a maximum of 20% of
the portfolio may be invested in time certificates of deposit.

U.S. Government and Agency Obligations allowed 100%, and combined Non-Agency MBS,
ABS, CMBS is 20%; For U.S. Agency Mortgage Related Securities, the single issuer
diversification limitation is as followed: Full Faith & Credit Agencies, including GNMA shall
have a maximum single issuer allocation of no more than 40% (and a maximum 4% per pool),
and FNMA and FHLMC shall have a maximum single issuer allocation of no more than 15%
(and a maximum 3% per pool); ABS shall have no issuer allocation greater than 3% and 1% per
pool.
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Interest Rate Risk

Interest rale risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value
of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of
its fair value to changes in market inferest rates. ASCIP has a formal investment policy that limits
investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from
increasing interest rates. ASCIP manages its exposure to interest rate risk by purchasing a
combination of shorter term and longer term investments and by timing cash flows from maturities
so that a portion of the portfolio is maturing or coming close to maturity evenly over time as
necessary to provide the cash flow and liquidity needed for operations.

In accordance with GASB 31, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Investmenis and for
External Investient Pools, ASCIP reports its investments at their fair value. The annual change in
the fair value is reported as a Non-Operating Expense on the Combined Statement of Revenues,
Expenses, and Changes in Net Position as Net Unrealized Loss on Investments. Due to the rise in
market interest rates over the last two years, this has resulted in large unrealized losses on ASCIP’s
portfolios. Since ASCIP intends to hoid these securities to maturity, these losses are considered
temporary in nature and are expected to reverse themselves as investments near maturity over the
next few years. The following summarizes the cumulative total of these unrealized market valye
losses by program.

Property & Workers’ Health
Investments Liability Compensation _ Benefits CIPA Total
Investments at Amortized
Book Value $ 160,199,633 § 222,393,024 $32,588,779 § 20,041,722 § 435,223,158

Cumulative Unrealized
Market Value Losses $ (9,323,936) § (24,658,162) §(1,025,i54) § (151,183) § (35,158,435)

Investments at Market Value § 144,501,820 $ 197,697,591 $31,112,991 $ 19,890,539 § 393,292,941
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Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of ASCIP's investments classified as cash
equivalents and investments fo market interest rate fluctuation is provided by the following
schedule that shows the distribution of ASCIP's investment by maturity:

Reported 12 Months 13-24 25-60 More Than
Cash/Investment Type Amount Or Less Months Months 60 Months
County Pool $ 45,896,654 $ 45,896,654 § - 3 - 5 -
State Investment Pool 60,042 60,042 - - -
Money Market Mutual Funds 0,746,099 6,746,099 - - -
52,702,795 52,702,795 - - -
.S, Treasury Obligations 232,835,516 40,474,026 13,233,551 86,190,239 92,937,700
Negotiable Certificates of
Deposit 7,000,000 7,000,000 - - -
Federal Agencies
Obligations 60,432,394 9,936,060 30,386,709 17,626,191 2,483,434
Corporate Notes 65,329,643 15,496,890 24,815,143 25,017,610 -
Supranational Obligations 3,949,685 779,216 1,629,702 1,540,767 -
Mortgage Pass Through
Obligations 7,257,660 . £,019,571 1,980,846 4,257,243
Mortgage- and Asset-Backed
Securities 3,480,349 8,045 610,337 2,861,967 -
Municipal Securities 13,007,694 3,914,227 1,901,230 4,797,238 2,394,999
393,292 941 70,608,464 80,596,243 140,014,858 102,073,376

Total

$445,995,736 $130,311,259

$73,596,243 $140,014,858

$ 102,073,376
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Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the
investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical
rating organization. Presented below is the minimum rating required by ASCIP's investment policy,
which is in conformance with the California Government Code, and the actual rating as of the year-
end for each investment type.

Minimum S&P and Fitch Ratings as of Year End
Fair Legal
Cash/Investment Type Value Rating AAA AA A BBB Unrated
U.S. Treasury Obligations  $ 232,835,516 o $ - $232,835516 % - 8 - % -
Negotiable Certificates of

Deposits 7,000,000 * 7,000,000 - - - -
Federal Agencies

Obligations 60,432,394 o - 60,432,394 - - -
Corporate Notes 65,329,643 A - 6,347,168 58,982,475 - -
Supranational Obligations 3,949,685 AA 3.949,685 - - - -
Mortgage Pass Through

Obligations 7,257,660 AA 186,405 7,071,255 - - -
Mortgage- and Asset-

Backed Securities 3,480,349 AA 3,480,349 - - - -
Municipal Securities 13,007,694 * 4411482 7,009,711 926,501 - -
County Pool 45,896,654 * - - - - 45,896,654
State Investment Pool 60,042 * - - - - 60,042
Money Market Mutual

Funds 6,746,099 - - - - 6,746,099

Total $ 445,995,736 $ 19027921 $314,356,044 § 59,908,976 § - § 52,902,795

* Not required to be rated
** Exempt from disclosure

Concentration of Credit Risk

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of an investor’s holdings
in a single issuer. The investment policy of ASCIP limits the investment in any one non-
governmental issuer to 5% or less depending on the security’s credit rating. GASB Statement No.
40 requires that investments in any one issuer (other than those explicitly guaranteed or issued by
the U.S. government or those invested in mutual funds, external investment pools or other pooled
investments) that represent 5% or more of total investments be disclosed. As of June 30, 2023, no
such investments exceeded 5%.

Custodial Credit Risk

This is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, ASCIP's deposits may not be returned to it. The
California Government Code requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by State or
local governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository
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regulated under State law (the governmental unit may waive collateral for amounts covered by
Federal deposit insurance). The market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must
equal at least 110 percent of the total amount deposited by the public agencies. California law also
allows financial institutions to secure public deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes
having a value of 150 percent of the secured public deposits and letters of credit issued by the
Federal Home Loan Bank of San Francisco having a value of 105 percent of the secured deposits.
As of June 30, 2023, ASCIP's bank balance was insured and/or collateralized with securities held
by the pledging financial institution's trust department or agent, but not in the name of ASCIP,

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The framework for measuring fair value provides a fair value hierarchy that categorizes the inputs
to valuation techniques used to measure fair value into three levels. The fair value hierarchy gives
the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
(Level 1) and lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3). The three levels of the fair value
‘hierarchy are described as follows:

Level | Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical
assets or liabilities in active markets that a government can access at the
measurement date,

Level 2 Inputs to the valuation methodology include inputs — other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 — that are observable for an asset or [iability, either directly
or indirectly.

Level 3 Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value
measurement.

The asset’s or liability’s fair value measurement level within a fair value hierarchy is based on the
lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation techniques
used need fo maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.

Uncategorized — Investments in the Los Angeles County Treasury Investment Pool, the Local
Agency Investment Fund, and Money Market Mutual Funds are not measured using the input levels
above because ASCIP's transactions are based on a stable net asset value per share. All
contributions and redemptions are transacted at $1.00 net asset value per share,
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ASCIP's fair value measurements are as follows at June 30, 2023:

Fair Value Measurements Using

Level 1 Level 2
Investment Type Fair Value Inputs Inputs
.S, Treasury Obligations $232,835,516 § 232,835,516 § -
Negotiable Cettificates of Deposit 7,000,000 - 7,300,000
Federal Agencies Obligations 60,432,394 - 00,432,394
Corporate Notes 65,329,643 - 65,329,643
Supranational Obligations 3,949,685 - 3,949,685
Mortgage Pass Through Obligations 3,480,349 - 3,480,349
Mortgage- and Asset-Backed Securities 7,257,660 - 7,257,660
Municipal Securitics 13,007,694 - 13,007,694
County Pool 45,890,654 - 45,890,654
State Investment Pool 60,042 - 60,042
Money Market Mutual Funds 0,740,099 - 0,746,099
Total $445,995736 $ 232,835,516 $ 213,160,220
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
Accounts receivable at June 30, 2023, consist of the following:
Property & Workers' Health
Liability Compensation Benefits

TFund Fund Fund CIPA Total
Accrued investment income $ 625,503 $ 984,727 § 339,644 § - § 1,949,874
Excess insurance recoveries 11,343,686 - 11,343,686

Other accounts receivable 5,207,642 3,812,877 873,851 770,752 10,665,122

Total $17,176,831 § 4,797,604 §1,213,495 § 770,752 $23,958,682
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CAPITAL ASSETS

A summary of capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2023, consists of the following:

Balance
Beginning Balance
of Year Additions Disposals End of Year
Land and buildings $ 17,863,258 § 1,196,846 $ (20,000) $ 19,040,104
Equipment 2,420,142 25,513 (32,577) 2,413,078
Accumulated depreciation {4,700,685) (433,205) 32,577 (5,101,313)
Capital assets, net $ 15,582,715 § 789,154 % (20,000) § 16,351,869

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

Accounts payable at June 30, 2023 consist of the following:

Property & Workers' Health
Liability = Compensation  Benefits
Type Fund Fund Fund CIPA Total
Salaries and benefits $ 299355 § 34,040 % 41,927 § - % 375,322
Accrued vacation 467,929 97,879 54,839 - 620,647
Other operating 1,217,922 1,202,972 4,789,140 1,464,277 8,674,311
Due to members 249,926 2,245,401 - - 2,495,327
Total $ 2,235,132 § 3,580,292 § 4,885,906 § 1464277 § 12,165,607
PREMIUM DIVIDENDS

ASCIP is required by its bylaws to recalculate and adjust prior years' premium deposits at annual
intervals until alf claims are closed or until the Executive Commiittee determines that sufficient facts
are known so that no additional calculations should be made. In 2023, retrospective adjustments for
workers’ compensation and health benefits were $9,616,403 and $8,022,739, respectively. The
adjustments were calculated related to workers’ compensation for the eleven years ended June 30,

2005 through June 30, 2015 and related to health benefits for the four years ended June 30, 2016
through June 30, 2019,

MEMBER RISK MANAGEMENT FUND

The Member Risk Management Fund (MRMF) was established to provide participating members
with the option to defer receipt of distributions made by ASCIP. The deferred funds may be used to
off-set future ASCIP premiums or other district related needs. Deferral requires both written
authorization by the member's senior administrative official and approval by ASCIP's Executive
Committee. ASCIP limits the total amount of funds held in the MRMF to the member's total annual
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10.

premiums. ASCIP credits interest income to member funds held within the MRMF and provides
members with quarterly statements. Withdrawal of MRMF funds requires written instructions from
the senior administrator or their designee(s). As of June 30, 2023, ASCIP reported a total balance of
$19,367,385 in its MRMF. This balance is included with restricted cash and cash equivalents.

SAFETY CREDIT PAYABLE

The Safety Credit program was established by ASCIP to offer its members with the ability to utilize
pottions of their premiums set aside by ASCIP to finance flexible safety-oriented activities and
programs conducted by the members. The Safety Credit program is administered by ASCIP as a
reimbursement-basis program. Members are reimbursed upon the submission of adequate
supporting documents. Annually, one percent of member premium contributions to the Property &
Liability and Workers® Compensation Programs are set aside for the Safety Credit program for each
member participating in ASCIP Property & Liability and Workers' Compensation Programs. Safety
credits set aside by ASCIP are subject to three-years rolling expiration. A corresponding amount is
included in restricted cash and cash equivalents since the credits can only be utilized by members
and are not subject to use by ASCIP until expiration. As of June 30, 2023, ASCIP reported the
following Safety Credit Payable:

Property & Liability Program $ 1,209,287
Worlkers' Compensation Program 676,804
Total $ 1,886,091

UNPAID CLAIMS AND CLAIMS ADJUSTMENT EXPENSES

ASCIP establishes a liability for claims based on estimates of the ultimate cost (including
estimated expenses for investigating and settling claims) that have been reported but not settled, and
that have been incurred but not reported (IBNR). ASCIP uses insurance agreements to reduce its
exposure to large losses. The insurance agreement discharges the primarty liability of ASCIP as
direct insurer of the risks insured above certain specified retentions.

The liability recorded for incurred losses is based on information obtained from independent
actuarial reports. The supporting information provided by ASCIP relies on the continuance of
certain historical trends and forecasts of future activities and conditions. Although management
believes that the claims payable for fosses and loss expenses at June 30, 2023, is adequate, the
ultimate settlement of claims and related expenses may vary from the liability recorded.
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12.

RECONCILIATION OF UNPAID CLAIMS AND CLAIMS ADJUSTMENT EXPENSES

As discussed in Note 10, ASCIP establishes a liability for both reported and unreported insured
events, which includes estimates of future payments of losses and related legal expenses. The

following represents changes in those aggregate liabilities for ASCIP during the fiscal years ended
June 30, 2023 and 2022:

2023 2022
Unpaid claims at beginning of year $ 258,754226  $ 255985,718
Incurred claims and claim adjustment expenses:
Provision for insured events of current vear 163,288,541 151,270,793
[ncrease (decrease) in provision for insured events of prior years 21,584,353 (26,486,596)
Total Incurred Claims and Claim Adjustment Expenses 184,872,890 124,784,197
Payments:
Claims and claim adjustment expenses attributable to insured
events of current year 84,292 587 77,815,186
Claims and claim adjustment expenses attributable to insured
events of prior years 62,868,725 44,200,503
Total Payments 147,161,312 122,015,689
Total unpaid claims at end of year $ 296,465,810  § 258,754,226
Current portion $ 66,196,285 § 45,824,002
Unallocated loss adjustment expense 19,657,707 18,092,615
Noncurrent portion 210,611,818 194,837,609
Total unpaid claims at end of year $ 296,465,810 $ 258,754,226

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM

ASCIP provides pension benefits to its employees through ASCIP’s Miscellaneous Plan (the Plan),
a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan maintained by CalPERS, an agency
of the State of California. ASCIP had less than 100 active members as of the June 30, 2021
actuarial valuation. As a result, qualified employeces are covered under the Miscellaneous 2% at 55
Risk Pool, CalPERS acts as a coimmon investment and administrative agent for participating public
entities within the State of California. CalPERS issues a publicly available financial report that

includes financial statements and required supplementary information for this plan, This report is
available online at www.calpers.ca.gov.

The California Legislature passed and the Governor signed the “Public Employees’ Pension
Reform Act 0of 2013” (PEPRA) on September 12, 2012, PEPRA contained a number of provisions
intended to reduce future pension obligations. PEPRA primarily affects new pension plan members

who are enrolled for the first time after December 2012. Benefit provisions and other requirements
are established by State statute.
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Benefits Provided

The benefits for the Plan are established by contract with CalPERS, in accordance with the
pravisions of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law (PERL). The benefits are based on
members’ years of service, age, final compensation, and benefit formula. Benefits are provided for
disability, death, and survivors of eligible members or beneficiarics. To be eligible for service
retitement, members must be at least 50 and have a minimum of five years of CalPERS-credited
service. Members after December 2012 must be at least 52 (o be eligible for service retirement.

Contributions

Section 20814(c) of the PERL requires employer contribution rates for all public employers be
determined on an annual basis by the actuary and are effective on the July 1 following notice of a
change in the rate. The contributions are determined through the CalPERS’ annual actuarial
valuation process. The Plan’s actuarially determined rate is based on the estimated amount
necessary to pay the Plan’s allocated share of the risk pool’s costs of benefits earned by employees
during the year, and any unfunded accrued liability. ASCIP is required to contribute the difference
between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of employees. ASCIP’s required
contribution rate on covered payroll for the measurement period ended June 30, 2022 (the
measurement date) was 10.88% and 7.59% of annual pay for Classic and PEPRA employecs,
respectively. Employer contribution rates may change if plan contracts are amended. For the year
ended June 30, 2023, the employer contributions to the plan were $889,023.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to
Pensions

ASCIP’s Net Pension Liability (NPL) for the Plan is measured as the proportionate share of the
NPL. The NPL of the Plan is measured as of June 30, 2022 for the year ended June 30, 2023, The
total pension liability (TPL) used to calculate the NPL was determined by an actuarial valuation as
of June 30, 2021 rolled forward to June 30, 2022 using standard update procedures. As of June 30,
2023, ASCIP’s proportionate share of the Plan’s NPL was $3,167,804.

Using ASCIP’s individual employer rate plan’s share of the risk pool TPL and Fiduciary Net
Position (FNP), the proportionate shares of the TPL and FNP at the measurement date are
determined for ASCIP by the actuary. ASCIP’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for
the Plan as of June 30, 2021 and 2022 were as follows:

Plan
Proportion - June 30, 2021 035337%
Proportion - June 30, 2022 .067699%
Change - increase (decrease) .032362%

For the year ended June 30, 2023, ASCIP recognized pension expense of §1,575,056.
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At June 30, 2023, ASCIP reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred

Outflows of Inflows of

Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience $ 63,616 % (42,609
Changes of assumptions 324,608 -

Net difference between projected and actual earnings

on pension plan investments 580,258 -
Net changes in proportionate share of net pension liability 590,265 -
Changes in proportionate share of contributions (2,351) -
Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date 889,023 -
Total § 2445419 % (42,609)

As of June 30, 2023, the $889,023 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to employer
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the NPL in
the year ending June 30, 2024. As of June 30, 2023, other amounts reported as deferred

outflows/inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized as pension expense (benefit) as
follows:

Year Ended June 30 Amount
2024 $ 518,548
2025 421,532
2026 218,802
2027 354,905
Total $ 1,513,787

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

The collective TPL for the June 30, 2022 measurement period was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of June 30, 2021, with update procedures used to roll forward the TPL to June 30,
2022, The collective TPL was based on the following assumptions:

Actuarial Cost Method Entry-Age Normal
Actuarial Assumptions:
Investment Rate of Return 6.90%
Inflation 2.30%
Salary Increases Varies by Entry Age and Service
Mortality Rate Table'" Derived using CalPERS’ Membership data for all Funds
Post Retirement Benefit Increase Contract COLA up to 2.30% until Purchasing Power

Protection Allowance Floor on Purchasing Power applies

¥ The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS’ specific data. The rates incorporate

Generational Mortality to capture ongoing mortality improvement using 80% of Scale MP 2020
published by the Society of Actuaries.
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Changes of Assumptions

Effective with the June 30, 2021, valuation date (2022 measurement date), the accounting discount
rate was reduced from 7.15% to 6.90%. In determining the long-term expected rate of return,
CalPERS took into account long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension
fund cash flows. Projected returns for all asset classes are estimated, combined with risk estimates,
and are used to project compound (geometric) returns over the long term. The discount rate used to
discount liabilities was informed by the long-term projected portfolio return. In addition,
demographic assumptions and the inflation rate assumption were changed in accordance with the
2021 CalPERS Experience Study and Review of Actuarial Assumptions.

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability for PERF C was 6.90%. The projection
of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members
will be made at the current member contribution rates and that contributions from employers will
be made at statutorily required rates, actuarially determined. Based op those assumptions, the Plan’s
fiduciary net position was projected fo be available to make all projected future benefit payments of
current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was
applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Long-Term FExpected Rate of Return

The long-term expected rate of return on peusion plan investments was determined using a
building-block method in which expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of
pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term
and long-term market return expectations. Using historical returns of all the funds’ asset classes,
expected compound (geometric) returns were calculated over the next 20 years using a building-
block approach. The expected rate of return was then adjusted to account for assumed
administrative expenses of 10 Basis points.

The table below reflects the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class.

Assumed Asset Real
Asset Class Allocation Return (V¢
Globai Equity — cap-weighted 30.00% 4.45%
Global Equity — non-cap-weighted 12.00% 3.84%
Private Equity 13.00% 7.28%
Treasury 5.00% 0.27%
Mortgage-backed Securities 5.00% 0.50%
Investment Grade Corporates 10.00% 1.56%
High Yield 5.00% 2.27%
Emerging Market Debt 5.00% 2.84%
Private Debt 5.00% 3.57%
Real Assets 15.00% 3.21%
Leverage (5.00%) {0.59%)
Total 100.00%

M An expected inflation of 2.30% was used for this period.
(@ Figures are based on the 2021-22 Asset Liability Management study.
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13.

Sensitivity of ASCIIP’s Proportienal Share of the NPL to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents ASCIP’s Proportional Share of the NPL of the Plan as of the June 30, 2022
measurement date, calculated using the discount rate of 6,90%, as well as what ASCIP's
Proportional Share of the NPL would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1
percentage-point lower (5.90%) or 1 percentage-point higher (7.90%) than the current rate:

Current
Discount Discount Discount
Rate — 1% Rate Rate + 1%
(5.90%) (6.90%) (7.90%)

ASCIP’s Proportionate Share of Plan’s NPL $ 5,603,210 § 3,167,804 § 1,164,069

DEFERRED RETIREMENT BENEFIT

Plan Description

ASCIP provides a post-employment lump sum payment to employees who meet certain criteria,
These lump sum payments are related to a closed group of participants who were previously
eligible for monthly post-retirement medical payments. As of June 30, 2023, ASCIP had not
established an irrevocable trust or designated a trustee for the payment of plan benefits.
Additionally, payments to beneficiaries are in the form of cash with no requirements for payments
to be used to fund retiree medical benefits. As such, GASB Statements 68 and 75 do not apply. An
actuarial valuation model was used to develop the liabilities for the May 31, 2023, measurement.
During the year ended June 30, 2023, ASCIP paid benefits to retirees of $84,413.

Benefits Provided

Employees who retire from ASCIP may be eligible for benefits pursuant to the provisions below:

Eligibility o Retire from active service
e |0 years of service
e Hired prior to July 1, 2017
Survivor Eligibility  No
Benefits All Employees
e Retirees age 55 with at least 10 years of service who retire from ASCIP
are offered a lifetime subsidy to be applied for medical coverage.
« Benefits are capped at $12,162 per year.
» The cap to be used for medical coverage is based on the retiree’s years of
service at retirement.
e A retiree with 10 years of service at retirement receives a lifetime subsidy
of 15% of ASCIP cap for active employees at the time of their retirement.
o For each additional year of service at retirement, a refiree receives an
additional 1% of the cap. For example, a retiree with 25 years of service at
retirement would receive 30% of the cap for active employees.
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Emplovees Covered

As of the May 31, 2023 actuarial valuation, the following inactive and active employees were
covered by the benefit terms under the plan;

Active Participants 24

Retired Participants 1

Total 25
Total Liability

ASCIP’s liability of $528,741 was measured as of May 31, 2023, and was determined by an
actuarial report dated May 31, 2021, based on the following actuarial methods and assumptions:

Actuarial Cost Method Entry-Age Normal

Actuarial Assumptions:
Discount Rate 4.24%
Inflation 2.75%
Salary Increases 2.75%
Mortality @) CalPERS’ Data
Retirement CalPERS’ Data
Termination @ CalPERS’ Data

(" Based on the 20-year municipal bond yield as of the Measure Date. The discount
rate changed from 4.09% as of June 30, 2022 to 4.24% as of May 31, 2023,
Benefits are not salary based and therefore a wage inflation assumption of 2.75%
was used. This assumption is only used for the application of the actuarial cost
method.

The mortality rate table, retirement rate table, and termination rate table used were
developed based on CalPERS 2021 experience study.

@)

()]
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14,

Changes in the Total Liability

The changes in the total liability for the plan are as follows:

Deferred
Retirement
Benefit
Balance at June 30, 2022 $ 605,844
Changes recognized for the measurement period:
Service cost 31,808
Interest cost 24,371
Changes of benefit terms (13,656)
Differences between expected and actual experience -
Changes in assumptions (35,213)
Actual benefit payments (84.413)
Net changes (77,103)
Balance at Junz 30, 2023 $ 528,741

PARTICIPATION IN PUBLIC ENTITY RISK POOL

ASCIP's member agencies arc members of the Schools Excess Liability Fund (SELF) public entity
risk pool. Member agencies pay an annual premium to SELF, which is collected by ASCIP and
forwarded 1o SELF, for excess insurance coverage for General/Auto Liability and CSA claims from
$5,000,000 to $55,000,000. The relationship between ASCIP and SELF is such that SELF is not a
component unit of ASCIP for financial reporting purposes. The SELF governing board consists of
elected representatives of the members by region.

SELF has budgeting and financial reporting requircments independent of member units and its
financial statements are not presented in these financial statements; additionalfly, fund transactions
between SELF and ASCIP are not included in these statements. The payments to SELF for the year

ended June 30, 2023, were $19,958,546. Audited financial statements are available from SELF at
their website, www.selljpa.org,
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15.

16.

LEASES

ASCIP leases land from the City of Cerritos for land under and around where their new building
resides. As of June 30, 2023, the value of the lease liability was $7,002,627. ASCIP is required to
make monthly payments that change over time based on the lease agreement. For purposes of
discounting future payments on the lease, ASCIP used a discount rate of 4.00%. The right-to-use
assel as of June 30, 2023 was $6,875,663 and is being amortized over the remaining term of the
lease. Accumulated amortization as of June 30, 2023 was $166,870. The future minimum principal
and interest lease payments as of June 30, 2023, are as follows:

Year Ending

June 30, Principal Interest Total
2024 $ - % 175,758 $ 175,758
2025 - 175,758 175,758
2026 - 175,758 175,758
2027 - 175,758 175,758
2028 - 175,758 175,758
Thereafler 7,002,627 10,390,968 17,393,595
Totals $ 7,002,627 § 11,269,758 % 18,272,385
CONTINGENCIES

ASCIP is subject to legal proceedings and claims which arise in the ordinary course of business. In
the opinion of management, the amount of ultimate liability with respect to these actions will not
materially affect the financial position or results of operations of ASCIP.
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PURPOSE OF SCHEDULES
Reconciliation of Claims Liability by Type of Contract

This schedule presents information on how ASCIP establishes a. liability for both reported and
unreporied insured events, which includes estimates of future paymeuts of losses and related legal
expenses.

Claims Development Information

This schedule presents information on how ASCIP’s insurance funds illustrates how earned
revenues and investment income compare to related costs of loss and other expenses assumed by
the insurance fund as of the end of each of the last ten years.

Schedule of ASCIP’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability

This schedule presents information on ASCIP’s proportionate share of the net pension liability
(NPL), the plans' fiduciary net position. In the future, as data becomes available, ten years of
information will be presented.

Schedule of ASCIP’s Contributions

This schedule presents information on ASCIP’s required contributions, the amounts actually
contributed, and any excess or deficiency related to the required contribution. In the future, as data
becomes available, ten years of information will be presented.
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erty & Liahility Workers Compensation Health Beacfits CIPA Total
2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022

092§ 154086367 § 80,888,657 § 87075520 § 06034862 § 4823436 § 10,659,615 § 9598395  § 258754226 $ 255,9857i8

980 48,307,068 36475336 23,764,760 80,294,881 75,685,752 1,190.344 3.513.183 163,288,541 151,270,793
335 (10,176,172} (1,586,530) (15,848.776) 346,428 1,010,401 2.760,122 (1.472,049) 21,584,355 (26,486,590)
315 38,130,880 34,888,800 7.916,014 80,641,309 76,696,153 3,950,466 2,041,134 184,872,890 124,784,197
403 3,133,926 3,681,399 4,738,393 74,033,998 69,821,617 22,287 121,250 84,292,587 77.815.186
038 27912245 11,904,003 9,364,484 6,207,612 3,665,110 1,291,471 1,258,664 62,868,725 44,200,503
042 31.046,171 17,585,902 14,102.877 80,241,610 75,480,727 1,313,758 1,379,914 147,161,312 122,015,689
365§ 161171092 98,191,361 § BO883657 4 6434561 0§ 6034862 % 13296323 5 10,650.615  $ 206,4658(0 § 238754226
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The following tables illustrate how ASCIP's earned revenue {net of reinsurance) and investment income
compare to related costs of loss (net of loss assumed by reinsurers) and other expenses assumed by
ASCIP as of the end of each of the years. The rows of the table are defined as follows:

1.

This line shows the total of each fiscal year's gross earned contribution revenue and investment
revene, contribution revenue ceded to reinsurers, and net earned contribution revenue, and
reported investment revenue.

This line shows each fiscal year's other operating costs of ASCIP including overhead and
claims expense not allocable to individual claims.

This line shows ASCIP's gross incurred claims and allocated claim adjustment expenses, claims
assumed by reinsurers, and net incurred claims and allocated adjustment expenses (both paid
and accrued) as originally reported at the end of the first year in which the event that triggered
coverage under the contract occurred (called policy year).

This section of rows shows the cumulative net amounts paid as of the end of successive years
for each policy year.

This line shows the latest re-estimated amount of claims assumed by reinsurers as of the end of
the current year for each accident year.

This section of rows shows how each policy year's net incurred claims increased or decreased
as of the end of successive years. (This annual re-estimation result from new information
received on known claims, reevaluation of existing information on known claims, and
emergence of new claims not previously known).

This line compares the latest re-estimated net incurred claims amount to the amount originally
established (line 3) and shows whether this latest estimate of net claims cost is greater or less
than originally thought. As data for individual policy years mature, the correlation between
original estimates and re-estimated amounts commonly is used to evaluate the accuracy of net
incurred claims currently recognized in less mature policy years. The columns of the table show
data for successive policy years.

See accompanying note to required supplementary information 49
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JUNE 30, 2023 |
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2028 2021 2022 2023
$ 56514 F 0 56,071 $ 59326 % 58378 § 57,984 $ 62,064 § 68295 5 66466 $ 6142 $ 74207
(13,759 (13,578) (14,080 (17,787) (17.932) (21,678) (i4,184) (i8.429) (22,013) (24,272)
42,755 43,093 45,246 40,591 40,052 40,386 54,111 48,037 39413 49,935

$ 5808 § 8912 § 8432 % 9,139 § 10,041 3 9,029 3 6,592 % 8992 § 0,655 5 9,831 i

$ 38947 % 31,380 $ 43,524 $ 39887 $ 40351 5 65,100 ¥ 68,660 ¥ 40887 $ 65,898 § 0 49205

(1,599 - (9,164) (4,918) (5,597) (21.273) {28,337) (11,822) {18,129) (5.215) |
37.344 31,380 34,360 34,969 34,754 43,827 40,323 33,065 47,769 44,080 ‘
|

$ 3393 0§ 1586 5 2673 % 1378 % 3309 0§ 5360 0§ 4040 0§ 4264 F 0 1IM 0§ 4554
7.429 3,846 9,193 6,375 9,134 8,396 9,459 6,703 15,094 _
11,615 13,624 13,435 15,047 18,571 13,206 12,348 8,445
20228 16,088 23,188 23,534 24,057 19,191 20,897
20,633 23419 31,777 29.942 30,078 10,690 - |
20,465 23,972 32,912 32,793 36,213 ;
22.754 24335 35234 36,680
21.342 24,854 36,813 |
22,922 24.837 ?
22 481 '

$009757 0§ 9046 % 18229 30280 0§ lo494  § 17558 0§ 4044 0§ 4207 0§ 18,120 0§ 5215

$ 037348 % 21380 0§ 34360 0§ 34969 0§ 3473 0§ 43827 0§ 40323 0% 38065 5 47769 § 4,080
30,298 28,082 31206 33,584 39,901 39,433 37947 20,518 58,675

29,198 29,866 31922 44,963 42,096 37,606 32,863 17,205
28,260 29,596 37313 44441 49,225 37.924 38,506
28,293 28,014 39,877 45,681 43,955 43,406
24,400 27,746 39,236 46,037 47,024
24,759 27,467 38,230 42,039 .
23,934 27,956 40,933
24 693 26,336
25,121

ar b (12227) § (5,044y § 6,573 $ 070 5 12270 $ - @42n 0§ (1L317) & (20860) % 7.906 5 -
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CLAIMS DEVELOPMENT INFORMATION {in Thousands)

JUNE 30, 2023
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
28903 % 3477 0§ 38103 0§ 33770 0% 31528 0§ 37407 0§ 37L& 22472 5 14997 % 36768
(1,397 (1,399 (1,558) {1,595) (1,600) {1.824) {5,632) {4,080) {2,164) (2,25%)
27,506 33,372 16,545 32,175 29927 15,583 32,079 18,392 12,833 34515
$ 083 § 6127 § 5350 % 9139 0§ 6341 $ 6175 0§ 6309 $ 6385 0§ 7468 0§ 12642
$ 30,055 § 32989 § 3464 % 32947 0§ 32273 0§ 34471 0% 32423 $ 21017 8 36337 § 43083
(9.296) {9.957) (9,370) (10.903) (£1,497) (11,328) (9,936) (1,732) {11.487) {8,716)
20,759 23,032 22,004 22,044 20,776 23,143 72,487 13,285 24,850 35,267
§ 2445 0§ 2082 0§ 2981 % 2615 0§ 2750 0§ 3054 0§ 3,107 0§ 1448 0§ 4738 § 5682
5,029 5,880 6,432 6,076 5912 7567 5,763 4221 9,950
7.020 7,797 8,692 8,162 7,964 9964 8,036 6,036
8.287 9,004 10,026 9,244 9,682 11,385 9,396
8.926 9,874 11,064 10,197 10,507 12487
9,334 10,603 11,643 10,879 11,548
9,763 10,890 12,059 L1505
9.948 11,178 (2524
10.098 11,323
10,183
§ 5720 % 5877 % 5812 0§ 743 % 7260 10509 0§ 8319 %5 7788 5 8788 § 8716
§ 20759 0§ 230327 0§ 22004 0§ 22044 % 20776 0§ 23,143 % 22487 § 13285 § 24850 § 35267
17,685 20,920 23,614 20,438 19430 24,857 18,852 13,359 26,822
18,706 21,113 21,518 21,461 17,577 23,931 16,112 13,897
17,138 18,171 19,972 18,216 17,168 20,672 15,852
15,556 17,237 17,140 17,087 15,673 19,081
14,911 15,216 17,076 15,371 13,238
13,544 15,225 15,717 15,248
13,647 14,132 15,440
12,186 13,584
11,909
ear § (8850) $  (9448) $ (6,650 $ (6796 5 (5538) $ (4002} $ (6635 § 6i2 § 1972 % -
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JUNE 30, 2023
201+ 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
$ 120532 % 135613 § 172556 % 173474 § 159828 § 151,735 § 152444 3 156478 § 164,792 $ 162,601
(2,108) (3,120} (5,740) {6,097) {5,630 (5,285) (5451) (76,195) (5,863) {4,946}
118,427 132,493 166,816 167,377 154,198 146,450 146,993 80,283 158,929 157,658

3 5296 % 6134 § 7764 % 7077 % 7,007 § 5448 % 5579 § 6427 % 6,695 $ 8,768

$ 48715 $ 49376 76,957 $ 84,615 § 82304 0§ 79083 $ 65338 § 72343 § 75,669 3 80295

48,715 49,376 76,957 84,615 82,304 79,988 65,338 72.343 73,609 30,205

$ 45980 F 49943 § 72487 F 071§ TRLI99 % 74471 S5 65338 % 67675 % 69822 5 74034 ,
51,522 56.606 76,304 86,679 81,575 73,854 69,883 69,311 75,714 5
51,522 56,607 76,304 86,679 81,575 73,854 69,853 69311
51,522 56,607 76,304 86,679 81.575 73,854 69,883
51,522 56,607 76,304 86,679 81,575 73,854
51,522 56,607 76,304 46,679 81,575
51,522 56,607 76,304 86,679
51,522 56,607 76304 i
31,522 56,607
51,522

$ - 5 - - % - % - % -5 - % - 3 - 8%

$ 48715 § 89,722 %3 76957 $ 84,015 82304 5 79988 § 065338 % 72343 § 75,609 $ 80295

51,611 56,607 76,338 86,679 81,575 73,854 69,883 69,311 75.714 ;
51,522 56,607 76,304 86,679 81.575 73,854 69,883 69,311 i
51,522 56,607 76,304 86,679 81,575 73,854 69,843 !
51,522 56,607 76,304 86,679 81,575 73,854
51,522 56,607 76,304 86,679 81,573
51,522 56,607 76,304 86,679 i
51,522 56,607 76,304
51,522 36,607
51,522

ar § 2,807 § 7231 % (653) % 2064 % (729) % (6,134) % 4545  §  (3,032) § 45 % -
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ALLIANCE OF SCHOOLS FOR COOPERATIVE
INSURANCE PROGRAMS

CIPA (OCIP, STUDENT ACCIDENT, PUPIL TRANSIT PROGRAM, SIRA, CORR)

CLAIMS DEVELOPMENT INFORMATION (in Thounsands)

JUNE 30, 2023
2014 2015 2016 201°7% 2018 2019%% 2020 2021 2022 2023
$ 2.504 § 1,653 $ 1,786 $ 2,455 3 2,621 $ 4,900 $ 12,435 $ 10,762 3 7,118 3 6,139
(965) {505) (496) (465) (536) (1,021) (2,564) (2,130) {1,953) (537)
1,539 1,148 1,290 1,990 2,085 3,879 9,871 8,632 5,165 5,602
b 686 $ 675 b3 305 $ 473 $ 571 b 784 $ £,525 $ 2,883 $ 2,634 $ 763
$ 670 h 521 $ 504 ] 818 3 630 $ 1,464 $ 4,795 $ 5,220 $ 3,639 § 4,523
670 521 504 818 630 1,464 4,795 5,220 3,639 4,523
5 19 $ 39 $ 8 $ 119 b 43 $ 57 5 262 $ 167 % 113 b 22
21 160 47 246 85 163 991 1,178 461
22 226 79 438 180 194 1,495 738
23 239 166 420 207 206 1,831
20 260 716 364 210 247
33 274 1,039 423 233
42 220 2,386 3,875
48 2834 2,389
50 286
6l
3 - % - % -3 -~ % - % - % - 5 - % $ -
3 670 $ 521 $ 504 3 318 b} 630 % 1464 $ 4,795 $ 5,220 $ 3,639 $ 4.523
372 502 442 630 486 3,015 3,919 3,752 2,747
231 437 o[5 608 836 372 3,365 3,180
139 432 879 501 330 306 3,060
134 377 1,005 364 311 252
12 297 1,074 304 400
106 300 [,143 375
157 247 1,550
174 230
113
gar b (557) % (291 § 1,046 b (443 5 230 b (1212) § (1,729  § (2,040) 8 (892} § -

tident program
program
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ALLIANCE OF SCHOOLS FOR COOPERATIVE
INSURANCE PROGRAMS

SCHEDULE OF ASCIP’'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE
OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
AS OF JUNE 30,2023
LAST 10 YEARS*

Measurement Date June 30

1022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

1.0677% 0.0353% 0.0571% 0.0529% 0.0496% 0.0499% 0.0473% 0.0457% 0.0201%
167,804 $ 670975 $ 2,407,721 $ 2,120,535 $1.869.793 $ 1.967,870 § 1,643,087 $ 1,252,859 % 1.224,143

344,151 $5.432,540 $ 5,000,784  $4,518,35¢9 $ 4,558,579 $ 4,137,910 $ 3,269,220 $ 2,912,480 $ 2,520,782

56.13% 12.35% 47.58% 46.93% 41.02% 47.56% 50.26% 43.02% 48.56%
76.68% 88.29% 75.10% 75.26% 75.00% 73.00% 76.00% 81.00% 81.00%

ere no changes to benefit terms,

measurement period ending June 30, 2022, the discount rale was reduced from 7.15% to 6,.90% and demographic assumptions and the inflation
ccordance with the 2021 CaIPERS Experience Study and Review of Actuarial Assumptions. For the measurement period ending June 30, 2018,
tion rate were changed in accordance with CalPERS Experience Study and Review of Actuarial Assumptions December 2017. There were no

: Ist year of implementation, therefore only nine years are shown.

required supplementary information. 54




ALLIANCE OF SCHOOLS FOR COOPERATIVE

INSURANCE PROGRAMS

SCHEDULE OF ASCIP’S CONTRIBUTIONS

AS OF JUNE 30, 2023
LAST 14 YEARS®

Fiscal Year

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2616 2015
889,023 ¥ 703,475 $ 647,653 § 365,107 & 576,780 $ 456,855 $ 411,681 $ 338,763 $ 354308
(889.023) (703,475) (647,653) (565,107) (576,780) (456,855} (411,681) (338,763} (354,308)

-8 -3 -8 -8 -8 -8 -3 - % -
319750 $ 5,644,151 $5432,546  $5,060,784 5 4518359 $ 4,558,579 $4,137910 $3,269,226  $ 2,912,480
14.07% 12.46% 11.92% 11.17% 12.77% 10.02% 9.95% 10.36% 12.17%
of implementalion, therefore only nine years are shown.
55
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ALLIANCE OF SCHOOLS FOR COOPERATIVE
INSURANCE PROGRAMS

NOTE TO SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
JUNE 30, 2023

PURPOSE OF STATEMENTS

Combining - Statement of Net Position, Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net
Position, and Statement of Cash Flows.

The Combining Statement of Net Position, Combining Statement of Revenuves, Expenses, and
Changes in Net Position, and Combining Statement of Cash Flows are included to provide
information regarding the programs that have been included in the insurance funds column on the
Statement of Net Position, Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position, and the
Statement of Cash Flows.
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ALLIANCE OF SCHOOLS FOR COOPERATIVE

INSURANCE PROGRAMS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2023
Property & Workers' Health
ASSETS: Liability Compensation Benefits CIPA EJE Total

Current assels:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 12,012255 § 37385389 % 17487251 $ 60045630 % - § 38,889,525
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 18,773,488 2,479,988 - - - 21,253,476
Accounts receivable 12,113,669 4,797,604 1,213,495 770,732 - 18,895,520
Prepaid expenses and other assets 15,749,051 48,384 - ‘ 191,861 (1,548,725) 14,640,571
[nvestments maturing within one year 35,034,525 16,510,378 3,879,175 6,142,567 - 65,566,645
Restricted investments maturing within one year 5,041,819 - - 7,000,000 - 12.041.818

Total current assets 102,724,807 27,221,743 22,579,921 20,109,810 (1,948,725) 170,687,556

MNoncurrent assets:

Other receivable 5,063,152 - - - - 5,063,162
Investments, net of amount maturing within one year 100,515,476 181,187,213 27233816 6,747972 - 315,684,477
Deposits - - 4,721,090 - - 4,721,090
Capital assets, net 3.661.621 12,690.248 - - - 16,351,869
lotangible right-to-use lease asset - 6,875,663 - - - 6,875,663

Total noncurrent asgsets 109,240,259 200,753,124 31,954,906 6,717,972 - 348,696,261
Total assets 211,965,066 227974 .867 54,534,837 26,857,782 (1,948,725) 519.383.817
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Deferred autflows of resources for pension LOILY3] 191.861 342,427 - - 2445419
LIABILITIES:

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 2235132 3,580,292 4,845,906 1,464,277 - 12,165,607
Unearned premium revenues - - 4,051 2,985,839 (1,948,725} 1,042,065
Premium dividend payable - 2,853,037 3,310,190 - - 6,163,227
Member risk management fund 17,564,201 1,803,184 - - - 16,367,385
Satety credit payable 1,209,287 676,804 - - - 1,886,091
Current portion of unpaid claims 43,466,000 11,904,000 6,261,578 4,564,707 - 66,196,285
Unallocated claims adjustment expense 72318471 11,587,638 172,983 658,615 - 19,657,707
Total current liabilitics 71.713.091 32,404,935 14.635.608 9.673.438 (1.948.7125) 126,478,367
Noncorrent iabilities:

Unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses, net
of curtent portion 127,838,894 74,699,923 - 8,073,001 - 210,611,818
Net pension Liability 1,960,624 457,959 749221 - - 3,167,804
Deferred retirement benefit 528,741 - - - - 528,741
L.ease liabilily - 7.002.627 - - - 7,002,627
‘Total noncurrent fiabilitics 130,328,259 82.160.309 749,221 8,073,001 - 221,310,990
Tolal liabilities - 202.041,350 114,565,464 15,384,829 17,746,419 {1.948.723) 347,789,357

DEVFERRED INFLOYWS OF RESQURCES:
Deferred inflows of resources lor pension 34.092 2,997 5,520 - - 42,609
NET POSITION;

Invested in capital assets 3,661,621 12,563,284 - - - 16,224 905
Restricted 5,041,819 - - 7,000,000 - 12,041,819
Unrestricted 3,097,315 101,034,983 39.486.905 2,111,343 - 145,730,546
Total net position $ 11800755  § 113,398267 § 39485905 §  9,111.343 % - $ 173997270

See accompanying note to supplementary information.
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ALLIANCE OF SCHOOLS FOR COOPERATIVE
INSURANCE PROGRAMS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

OPERATING REVENUES:
Premium contributions from members
(ther income

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES:

Claims expense, nel of reimbursements
of $17,380,2006

Provision for IBNR and case reserves
Provision for ULAE rescrves
Excess/reinsurance premiums
Health benefits insurance premiums
Coniract services
Loss control and risk management
Gueneral and administrative
Premivm dividends

Tolal operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):

Interest and dividend income, net of fees
Nel realized/unrealized loss on investments
Tolal nen-operating income {loss)
Increase {decrease) in nel position

Nel position, beginning of year

Net position, end of year

Property & Workers' Health

Liability Compensation Benefits CIPA EJE Total
$ 71763872 § 49,300,243  § 169.889,041 § 5826552 § (2,299,573) § 294,480,133
108,478 87 1,364 - - 109,929
71,872,350 49,300,330 169,890,405 5,826,552 (2,299,575} 294,590,062
48,020,042 17,585,902 80,241,610 1,313,757 - 147,161,311
16,842,093 16,094,072 399,541 2,810,787 - 36,146,493
530,180 1,208,832 158 (174,078) - i,565,092
24,272,398 2,252,671 4,945,543 537,363 (2,299.575) 29,708,400
- - 76,838,285 - - 76,838,285
2,403,439 5,108,431 4,655,979 426,621 - 12,594,470
2,086,639 1,788,660 - - - 3,875,299
4,810,943 4,536,451 4,111,945 510,775 - 13,970,114
- 9,616,403 8,022,739 - - 17,639,142
98,965,734 58,191,422 179,215,800 5425225 (2,299,575} 339,498,606
(27,093.384) (8.891,092) (9,325,395) 401,327 - (44,908,544}
4,165,253 3,312,336 1,420,513 342,559 - 9,240,601
(1,830.614) (6.228,316) {687.413) (30,344) - (8,776.687)
2,334,039 (2,915,980} 733,100 312215 - 463.974
(24,758.743) (11.807,072) (8,592,295} 713,542 {44.444.570)
36,559,500 125,405,339 48,079,200 8,397,801 - 218,441,840
$ 11,800,755  $ 183598267 § 30486905 § 9011343 § - § 173997270

See accompanying note to supplementary information.
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ALLIANCE OF SCHOOLS FOR COOPERATIVE
INSURANCE PROGRAMS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASHFLOWS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash received from premium contributiens and
other income
Cash paid for claims
Cash paid for ciaims in excess layer
Cash received from reinsurer
Cash paid to benefits, insurance, and other expenses
Cash paid to employees
Cash paid to pension plan and retirees
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of capital assets
Net cash provided (used) by capital and
financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of investments
Proceeds [rom sale or maturily of investmenis
Interest and investment income received
Net cash provided {used) by investing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cush and cash equivalents
Cuash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

RECONCILIATION TO STATEMENT OF
NET POSITION
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating income {loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income {loss} to net
cash provided {used) by operaling activities:
Depreciation and amortization expense
(Inerease) decrease in:
Accounts receivable and other receivable
Prepaid expenses and other assets and deposits
Deferred outflows of resources
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable and other liabilities
Unearné‘dprcmium fevenues
Member risk managemeit fund
Unpaid claims and elaim adjustment expense
Nel pension lability
Deferred retirement benefit
Deferred inflows of resources

MNet cash provided (used) by operating activities

NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL, AND
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Unrealized loss on linvestments

Property & Workers' Iealth
Liability Compensation Benefits CIPA EJL Total
§ 72291433 % 46,563,034 § 170485958  § 5,199,307  § (4.798300) $ 293741432
(48,020,042) (17,585,902) (80,241,610} (1,313,758) - (147,161,312)
(17,344,427) (35,779) .- - - {17,380,2006)
12,228,032 35779 - - - 12,263,811
(30,241,217} (20,899,211} (97,876,742} (1,015,554) 4,798,300 (145,234,424}
{6,683,402) {827.275) {969,024} - - (8,479,701
(681.515) (110.687) {183,336) - - {975,538}
(18.451,138) 7,139,959 (8,784.754) 6,869,993 - (13,225,938}
(25.513) (1.176 846 - - - (1,202.359)
(25.513) (1,176,846} - - - (1,202,359)
(183,642,904) {23,360,772) (1,052,349) {17,327,700) - (225,383, 7131)
162,581,848 12,099,231 2,771,776 13,280,088 “ 190,738,943
4.272.500 3,720,861 717.653 2,632.957 - 11,343,971
(16.788.350) (7.540.680) 2.443.080 (1414.0613 - (23.300.817)
(35,263.207) (1,571,567) (6,341,674) 5,455,334 - (37,729,114)
66,030,950 7.442.944 23.828.925 349,296 - 97.872,115
¥ 30785743 % 3865377 0§ 17487251 § 6004630 - F 6014300
$ 12012255 $ 3.385.389 $ 17,487,251 § 6004630 5 - $ 38,889,523
18.773.488 2,479,988 - - - 21,253,476
$ 30785743 0§ 3865377 0§ 17487251 0§ 6004630 % - $ 060,143,001
$ 27093384y % (BRYL092) 0§ (9325393 % 401,327 $ - $ (44,908,544)
433,205 - 108.240 - - 541,445
{6,954,128) (2,170,696) 391,157 3,794,231 (2.,200,000) (6,939,436)
(4,184,542) {48,384) 610 046,156 1,948,725 (1,637.,393)
{989,497) {17.128) (83,658) - - (1,090,283)
(776,149) 1,473,872 (628,253) {186,991) 550,000 432,479
- - 4,396 {421,476) (298,725) (715,805)
2.256,816 {566,600) - - - 1,690,216
17372273 17,302,904 399,699 2,636,708 - 37,711,584
2,150,508 108,193 238,126 - - 2,496,829
(77,103) (77,163)
(589.137) (51,112 (89,676) - - (729,925)
$ (18451.138) § 7139959  § (8784734 § 6869995 § - 3 (13,225,938
§ (1803.897) § (6099432) § {(491.822) % 30344y § - 3 (8425495)

See accompanying note to supplementary information.
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OTHER INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT



SILBERT

Relax. We got this.™

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Governing Board
Alliance of Schools for Cooperative Insurance Programs
Cerritos, California

We have audited. in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Alliance of Schools for
Cooperative Insurance Programs (ASCIP) as of and for the vear ended June 30. 2023. and the related
notes to the financial statements. which collectively comprise ASCIP’s basic financial statements, and
have issued our report thercon dated November 29. 2023. The financial statements of Captive Insurance
for Public Agencies Limited (CIPA) were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing
Standeards, and accordingly. this report does not include reporting on internal control over financial
reporting or compliance and other matters associated with CIPA or that are reported on separately by
those auditors who audited the financial statements of CIPA.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered ASCIP's internal control
over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not tfor the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of ASCIP’s internal control. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of ASCIPs internal control.

A deficiency in fmernal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees. in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies. in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented. or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses, or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations. during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.
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Governing Board
Alliance of Schools for Cooperative Insurance Programs
Page two

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether ASCIP’s financial statements are [ree from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed no instances of nmoncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal controf and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

A llpevt C8 B

GILBERT CPAs
Sacramento, California

November 29, 2023

61



